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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBREERE

Result -

Revenue WA

Profit attributable to RRBHERBA
owners of the Company i3yl

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EARGA%ZEF| GE(L)

Proposed final dividend EETRARE

per share (HK cents)

P BB

BRI

Financial Position

mEBEEFE
FHESRTTERER

Net current assets
Total interest-bearing bank loans

Key Financial Ratios FEMKLLE
Gross profit margin FEAE
Net profit margin ]2
Return on equity [ ENEIEE
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio™ BEAGLEO
Operating Statistics EEYE
Throughput (metric tonnes) &S (AHE)
Nanjing terminal R 5E
Ningbo terminal R
Tianjin terminal KEMGEE
Jetty utilisation rate® [t el
Nanjing terminal [Eapa
Ningbo terminal R AR
Tianjin terminal ROEHGER

Notes:

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the sum of non-
current and current bank loans divided by total assets multiplied
by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual
throughput via jetties divided by (i) the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties for Nanjing terminal and Ningbo
terminal in relation to the operating period; and (ii) the total annual
adjusted designed throughput capacity of the jetty for the Tianjin
terminal in relation to the operating period.
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2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FHET FE %
240,675 233,024 3.3
90,076 96,745 (6.9)
9.15 11.73 (22.0)

5 - N/A
271,393 11,326 2,296.2
156,409 218,660 (28.5)
57.5% 61.5% (4.0)
42.9% 50.3% (7.4)
10.6% 22.1% (11.5)

2.5 1.1
14.3% 29.4% (15.1)
1,588,200 1,801,600 (11.8)
479,000 462,300 3.6
222,300 273,000 (18.6)
48.8% 54.6% (5.8)
61.4% 37.7% 23.7
45.4% 54.4% 9.0)
P& -

(1) BEBRBRLERIIAERELABRITER
BrIAEEBFRIA100%TE -

(2 FRAXRUGEFEEERSTELERMRAG)
MR E R HIEE AR EENIEEE
RETEATHE: Ri) K RTGEA B L EY
MRS AREISER A FRTHERATH -



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the first annual report of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) since our successful listing
on the Main Board (the “Listing”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10th June 2011.

RESULT

A significant milestone for Dragon Crown in 2011 was definitely
the Listing, which not only provides a financial platform to
accelerate expansion in our Nanjing terminal but also enhances
the transparency of the corporate governance. Although there was
a temporary production disruption of our key customer in the first
half of 2011, our profit attributable to shareholders for the year
of HK$90 million remained at healthy level. With our stable and
healthy operating cash inflow, our financial position has been further
strengthened since the Listing. To acknowledge the support of our
shareholders, the Board proposed a final dividend per ordinary share
of HK5 cents, which represents a total payout of approximately of
HK$55.5 million and 61.6% of the profit attributable to shareholders
for the year.

SAFETY

Qver the years, safety of people is our top priority. For this reason, we
provide regular trainings to all our staff and develop and enforce HSE
(Health, Safety and Environment) policies in accordance with the
national and industry standards. In 2011, we had not experienced
any material incidents during our operation. We will strive for
improvement with our goal to provide safety and quality services to
our customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

EXPANSION

Over the past years, we strategically expanded our storage terminals
network at those coastal locations that benefit most from the
growth of the petroleum and chemical industry in the PRC with
great success. In 2012, we will focus on the construction of a jetty
with berthing capacity of 20,000 dwt and eleven tanks with storage
capacity of 38,000 m® in our Nanjing terminal for general chemicals.
These facilities are expected to be operational by the first quarter of
2013. The total storage capacity in our Nanjing terminal will increase
25% from 152,000 m® to 190,000 m® by 2013. We have signed a
new long term terminal service contract with our key customer with
respect to 24,000 m® new storage capacity.

OUTLOOK

The year ahead will be challenging. The economic growth in China
is expected to slow down as a result of Eurozone financial crisis.
Nevertheless, we remain optimistic about the Group’s outlook.
The rapid expansion of Chinese domestic petroleum and chemical
industry will stimulate the continuing influx of multinational petroleum
and chemical companies in China, which will offer us opportunity
to broaden our customer base. Our business model as a leading
independent liquid chemical terminal service provider in the PRC can
facilitate and meet the logistics and storage needs from customers.
During the year, we have signed a memorandum of understanding
with Dow Chemical China Holdings Pte. Ltd. to establish chemical
terminal facilities in Tianjin Nangang Industrial Park. This cooperation
is another significant milestone of the Group for our strategy
to expand our terminal networks that support our customers’
expansion plan.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our colleagues and
staff for their hard work. | would also like to express my gratitude to all
of our business partners, customers and shareholders for their solid
support.

Ng Wai Man
Chairman
6 March 2012
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG, Wai Man, aged 55, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group
and is principally responsible for operation of our Board and is the
key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for formulating
the overall business strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG
has accumulated around 23 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited
and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988.
Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd from April 2004 to 2007
responsible for overseeing strategic development and management
of resources. From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG
was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company
which provides inspection, certification and testing services. He
served as the chairman and general manager from October 1997
to October 2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to
October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical
International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible
for strategic business management. Mr. NG was appointed as our
Director on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 30 November 2010.

BITESE

KRERS%E 55 AARBMITESERE
B REERTEENAIMA  FEEBE
Ex2EF BRTEEFEERRE B
BEHEIAEERBEBRKER - REE
FEHRBENETRECERTEFERLR
3FEMEEMBIELR - RELEBEDNL
ITHERARREFENSE - HRGHRE
tIERERAR (BRFMRELCIAHE
ERAR(ERFAMD AT MEIEA - I
B 1988 FREEIEEENE - RILHEB 2004
4 AZE 2007 FH{EREREMREC LHFE
WHEAERAAMBHFEAREK  BRE
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAER

Mr. TING Yian Ann, aged 51, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. TING is principally responsible
for overall management and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with our key customers. Mr. TING
joined our Group in 2003. Since 2007, Mr. TING has served as
the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown
Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. He has accumulated around
23 years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. TING was a regional budget coordinator of Astra
Asia Regional Office, a pharmaceutical company, in Singapore
from 1986 to 1988, his major duties included coordinating and
preparing budget for all regional offices within Asia and reporting
to managing director. He served as an account executive from
1988 to 1990, a senior account manager, sales and marketing
department from 1990 to 1992, an assistant vice president, sales
and marketing department from 1992 to 1993, a vice president,
regional development and marketing department from 1993 to 1995,
a senior vice president, regional development and marketing from
1995 to 1997, and president and chief executive officer from 1997
to 2001 of GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd., a company providing
global networks in bulk liquid storage, packaging, distribution and
logistic services in Singapore. His major duties at GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. covered overall planning and operation of the
company in the region, formulating strategies, cultivating relationship
with customers and authorities and developing internal controls
system. Mr. TING was the deputy chairman of the Singapore
Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001 and also served as
the chairman of the Logistics & Distribution Committee established
under the Singapore Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001.
Mr. TING graduated from University of Southern California in 1985
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. Mr.
TING was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAR

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 50, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 17 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 46, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 23 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAER

Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen, aged 38, is an executive Director. Mr.
KWAN joined our Group in 2003. He is principally responsible for
the financial and accounting management of our Group. Mr. KWAN
has over 16 years of experience in accounting and finance field and
has accumulated around eight years of experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry since his joining
our Group in 2003. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. KWAN worked
for Pannell Kerr Foster, an accounting firm, from 1995 to 1997 as
audit senior responsible for auditing works, and Ernst & Young as
audit senior responsible for audit planning and providing supervision
of auditing staff from 1997 to 2003. Mr. KWAN graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 with a Degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration (Major in Professional Accountancy). He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. KWAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUO is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2003, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAR

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1965 with a bachelor
degree in chemical engineering. He has obtained the qualification
as a senior economist from the assessment committee of China
Petrochemical Company which assessed his qualification according
to standards set by the State Council in 1995.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also
chairman of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the
financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board over 3 years and had worked
with PricewaterhouseCoppers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU graduated
from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree of science in
Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an independent
non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board since June 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 47, is a director and general manager
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group since May
2004. Mr. ZOU is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Nanjing. Mr. ZOU has accumulated
around nine years of management and operation experience in
the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry
Mr. Zou’s major responsibility with the Group includes managing
and coordinating operation workflow, recruitment and training of
managers under his supervision, developing guidelines of operation
and maintenance. He is overseeing operations in our terminals in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Tianjin. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the China Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he
gained valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated
from Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 54, is the deputy general
manager of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. LAU is principally
responsible for our Group’s business and new project development
of petrochemical terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated
around 23 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU
was an engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988
to 2004 and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics,
operations and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in
the list of competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification
of LPG compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November
1996. He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAR

Mr. LI Lian Chun, aged 53, is the general manager of Tianjin
Tianlong. Mr. LI has joined our Group since March 1994. Mr.
LI is principally responsible for our Group’s overall operational
management in Tianjin including managing and coordinating
workflow, setting up annual budget and fiscal plan, providing training
and recruitment of managers. Mr. LI has accumulated around 17
years of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry since his joining our
Group in 1994. Mr. LI graduated from Tianjin Normal University with
a bachelor of Art degree in English in 1984 and completed Post
Graduate Course for Further Study in business management in
Nankai University.

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 56, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 19 years of management and operation
experience of which around 16 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is an integrated terminal service provider in the PRC
specialised in the storage and handling of liquid chemical products.
Its flagship terminal in Nanjing is sited in the thriving Yangtze River
Delta region of China, while the terminals in Ningbo and Tianjin are
strategically placed in the Zhenhai District and the emerging Bohai
Economic Rim, respectively. At each location, Dragon Crown offers
comprehensive storage and terminal services that include providing
loading and unloading facilities at its self-owned jetties, liquid
chemical storage at its tank farms, and delivery to and from clients’
factories through dedicated chemical pipelines or other logistics
modes, including via road, rail, and waterway. The following table
provides an overview of the existing terminals and facilities as at 31

December 2011:-
Existing Terminals and facilities Nanjing
REBERRKE BR
Number of tanks fE TSN 20
Storage capacity (m?) HEAE (LA K) 152,000
Number of berth YA EL 2
Berthing capacity (dwt) JBRIBE N (FEME) 25,000
Jetty designed throughput ISSERR AT AT E

capacity (metric tonnes) (AWE) 2,600,000

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Dragon Crown achieved
revenue of approximately HK$240.7 million (2010: HK$233.0
million). The gross profit reached approximately HK$138.3 million
(2010: HK$143.4 million). Gross profit margin maintained at a high
level of 57.5% (2010: 61.5%). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$90.1 million (2010: HK$96.7
million). Basic earnings per share was HK9.15 cents (2010: HK11.73
cents).
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The decrease in profit was due to the temporary production
disruption of the Group’s customer (“Production Disruption”) and
facilities upgrade of the Group. The Group considers that the
Production Disruption is a non-recurrent incident. The Group’s
customer has gradually resumed normal operation during the
second half of the year and the throughput volume handled by the
Nanjing Terminal has rebounded materially afterwards. On the other
hand, the upgrade of the Dragon Crown’s ethylene storage and
handling facilities is to improve the ethylene handling efficiency. It is
beneficial to the Group’s long term growth.

During the year under review, the total actual throughput of liquid
chemicals handled by the Group was 2,289,500 metric tonnes
(2010: 2,536,900 metric tonnes). While Nanjing terminal, Tianjin
terminal and Ningbo terminal recorded annual throughput of
1,588,200 metric tonnes, 222,300 metric tonnes and 479,000
metric tonnes respectively.

The Nanjing terminal is Dragon Crown’s flagship operation. The
terminal is strategically located inside the heart of the Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park, one of China’s major production sites for
liquid chemicals. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Nanjing
terminal was the main income source of the Group and accounted
for 92.7% of the Group’s total profit (2010: 91.1%). The throughput
volume of liquid chemical recorded a decrease to 1,588,200 metric
tonnes (2010: 1,801,600 metric tonnes) due to the Production
Disruption and facilities upgrade.

AR AR A RER P EREETH
(THEETE]) RAKEREICETT R - K
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BEREAEW S 42,289,500 A1 (2010 4 :
2,536,900AME) - M F RAEEE - RIETEEE
K2 RASSE D BES & 21,588,200 A
I - 222,300 AME K2 479,000 A

ARG EARINEEER - ZIFHEER
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The Ningbo terminal business maintained at a stable growth rate
during the year. The terminal recorded a total annual throughput
of handled liquid chemicals of 479,000 metric tonnes (2010:
462,300 metric tonnes) during the year under review. The Tianjin
terminal business was affected by the construction works of the
local government in the inner river. The throughput volume of liquid
chemicals handled by the terminal was 222,300 metric tonnes
(2010: 273,000 metric tonnes) for the year.

Located at the heart of the Nanjing Chemical industry Park is Dragon
Crown’s major customer, Celanese Corporation. Dragon Crown has
been serving its subsidiaries since 2004, building a close relationship
through long-term service contracts that provide sustainable
earnings and operating cash inflow over the years. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Celanese Contracts contributed
approximately HK$236.0 million in revenue (2010: HK$228.3 million),
which accounted for more than 90% of the Group’s revenue.

The Group constantly explores expansion opportunities under the
growth strategies to replicate the successful experience of the
existing business to other coastal area and tapping the Pan-Bohai
region. It successfully entered into a Memorandum of Understanding
(“MOU”) with Dow Chemical China Holdings Pte. Ltd. (‘DOW”) in July
to establish chemical terminal facilities in Tianjin Nangang Industrial
Park. It is expected to become another major chemical park in China
and the facilities will become a strategic distribution hub of Dow in
China. With an initial investment plan of approximately US$200.0
million, it is projected that the chemical terminal facilities will have a
total land area of 50 hectares and the annual handling capacity of
up to 9 million metric tonnes. The project is currently undergoing
preparation works to gain approval from related government
authorities.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the revenue of the Group
increased slightly by 3.3% to HK$240.7 million from HK$233.0
million in 2010. The increase was mainly attributable to the
recognition of a currency gain of HK$11.3 million as a result of the
appreciation in Renminbi (‘RMB”) during the year and HK$6.4 million
jetty revenue generated from major customers as detailed in heading
“Other income” below. However, the increase was in part offset by
the decrease in excess throughput fee from the major customer, by
HK$11.9 million in 2011. As a result of the Production Disruption and
facilities upgrade, total throughput volume handled by the Nanjing
terminal decreased to 1,588,200 metric tonnes during the year from
1,801,600 metric tonnes in last year. The excess throughput fee from
the Group’s major customer decreased accordingly.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2011, gross profit decreased to
HK$138.3 million from HK$143.4 million in 2010. Correspondingly,
the gross profit margin decreased to 57.5% in 2011 from 61.5%
in 2010. The decrease in gross profit was primarily due to the
combined effects of the decrease in excess throughput fee, the
recognition of exchange gain as mentioned above and the general
increase in the operation costs such as diesel fuel costs during the
year.

The cost of services provided increased to HK$102.4 million in
2011 compared with HK$89.6 million in 2010, primarily due to the
recognition of exchange loss of HK$4.8 million as a result of the
appreciation in RMB, the increase in port related costs of HK$4.0
million as detailed in heading “Other income” below and the increase
in diesel fuel cost of HK$3.7 million during the year.
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Other income

Other income decreased to HK$2.4 million in 2011 from HK$11.8
million in 2010. The decrease was mainly due to (i) there was a
one-off revaluation gain of HK$ 2.5 million on pre-existing interest
in the acquisition of Dragon Bussan International Limited (“Dragon
Bussan”) in 2010 during the Reorganisation, but no such gain
incurred in 2011; and (i) no government subsidies was recorded as
the Group charged its major customers jetty fee of HK$6.4 million
as revenue and paid port related costs of HK$4.0 million to the Port
Authority as cost of service provided in 2011, thus the Group was
not entitled to lodge application for the subsidy. In addition, the
subsidies on port construction fee ceased since 1 October 2011
after the issuance of a notice by the Ministry of Transport of the
People’s Republic of China together with the Ministry of Finance of
the People’s Republic of China.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$32.0 million during the
year, compared with HK$29.1 million in 2010. The slightly increase
of HK$2.9 million in the year as compared with the figure a year
earlier was mainly attributed to the combined effects of the decrease
in listing fee by HK$6.2 million, the increase of exchange gain by
HK$3.2 million, the increase in directors’ remuneration by HK$7.0
million and the increase of staff costs of HK$3.7 million and the
increase of rental expense of HK$1.2 million during the year.

Finance costs
Finance costs for the year dropped to HK$8.2 million from HK$8.9

million for the same period of 2010. The slight decrease was due to
the repayment of bank loans during the year.
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Share of profits of associates

Share of profits of associates for the year decreased to HK$2.2
million from HK$5.3 million for 2010 because the Group acquired
the 40% remaining interest in Dragon Bussan on 29 November
2010 (the “Acquisition”). Dragon Bussan ceased to be an associate
and became the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary. Its interest
in Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
Ningxiang”) is accounted for as a jointly-controlled entity of the
Group.

Share of profits of jointly-controlled entities

Share of profits of jointly-controlled entities increased to HK$6.0
million in the year from HK$2.7 million in the same period of 2010
because Ningbo Ningxiang became the Group’s jointly-controlled
entity after the Acquisition.

Tax expense

Tax expense for the year amounted to HK$5.3 million, compared
with HK$8.0 million in 2010. The effective tax rate of the Group
decreased from 6.4% in 2010 to 4.9% in 2011.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares during the year.
The net proceeds will be used to develop Nanjing phase Il facilities.
These proceeds were applied during the year ended 31 December
2011 in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”), as follows:—
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Construction of ten spherical storage tanks SRR 10 BEERIE AT

Construction of the third jetty SRR SR 3 ETEER
Construction of the dedicated railway system — EZ:RE A R4
Construction of nine general RO E—M
purpose storage tanks PR
General working capital —fREEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits or
time deposits with banks in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2011.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$156.4 million (2010: HK$218.7 million), which included RMB
bank loans of 85.7 million (2010: RMB106.7 million). The Group’s
gearing ratio (total bank loans to total assets) was 14.3% at 31
December 2011 (2010: 29.4%). The gearing structure was as

follows:—

Total bank loans IRITEFREE
Total assets BEMR
Gearing ratio BEAEBE
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133.1 - 133.1
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The Company received HK$281.1 million net proceeds after its
shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. As a result, its cash and bank balances increased to
HK$403.2 million as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$46.6 million).
The cash will be primarily used for the development of Nanjing phase
Il facilities as mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$451.5 million (2010: HK$104.2 million)
and HK$180.1 million (2010: HK$92.9 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2011, Group current ratio increased to 2.5 (2010: 1.1).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts
a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:—

ARRB MR ERKI LMWK - &
SIS RIRFER2.811EET - Bt - K
SERN2011F12 831 H 2R & RIRTTAEH
12 11 % 4.082 {8 7% 7T (2010 4F : 4,660 & 7%
7o) AR EMAEER LlimRE=
HIR i -

R2011F12A31H + AEBEREBEERR
B EDAIA4515EBIL(20104F : 1.042
BB TT) K& 1.801 EE T (20104F : 9,290 &
HIT) °2011F 12 A31H » KAEEZRE
LR A2.5(20104F  1.1) »

AEBEFREMMEREPTEER - RN
BEZMBEE  AERFRRNEARLLE
RS FREAREE 2 BRFEL o
REERBER

AEBRITEROESEKXBERE T

™
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET

Repayable JEE=R

Within one year —FREE 144,474 56,472
In the second year F_FEE 11,935 150,808
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFAFT (BEEERT) - 11,380
156,409 218,660

Note: All bank loans are denominated in RMB currency except for a HKD
denominated bank loans of HK$50,698,000 which will mature in
November 2012.

Mzt  AREMERITERIEARBTERT
—EPUBITRMEREFER2012F 11 A2
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PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and HK$. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. During the year, the Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure and had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

As most of the Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in
RMB, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated with
reference to the benchmark interest rate amended by the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) from time to time. The Group will closely
monitor the interest rate movements and regularly review its banking
facilities so as to mitigate the expected interest rate risk.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2011 are set out
in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 267 full
time employees (2010: 252). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group made no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Remaining optimistic over the outlook of the chemical storage and
logistics industry, the Group will persist with the growth strategy
of expanding its existing terminal storage business and replicating
its success to other coastal regions in China. The strong financial
position after the Listing will lay the groundwork for future expansion.

The Group is expediting efforts to the development of Phase |l
facilities in Nanjing terminal. The following table provides an overview
of the terminal facilities to be constructed in Nanjing terminal in
2012:-

Nanjing

Phase lli

facilities

AREZH

it

Number of tanks HEHE 9

Storage capacity (m?) #EAE (LA XK) 18,000

Number of berth JARLEL 1

Berthing capacity (dwt) JARIEE S (BN EMR) 20,000
Expected investment amount TEEHIRE

(approximately RMB’000) (WAREETIT) 104,500

During the year under review, the Group has signed a new long
term terminal service contract with its key customer with respect to
24,000 m® new storage capacity. Out of the nine general purpose
storage tanks under Nanjing Phase Il facilities, two storage tanks
with a total of 4,000 m® will be operated under the new long term
terminal service contract. These projects are expected to be
completed by the first quarter of 2013. Nanjing Phase lll facilities
will be financed by the IPO net proceeds, project financing and/or
internal resources in accordance with the proposed applications set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. The tanks and associated facilities under the new long
term terminal service contract will be financed by project financing
and/or internal resources.
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With 20 years’ industry experience and proven track record of
serving the leading multinational chemical enterprise, the Group
has the competitive strengths in cooperation with those multination
enterprises in establishing their footprints in China. Compared
with the local counterparts, the Group can accommodate specific
storage requirements for wide range of liquid chemicals including
Cryogenic Ethylene which requires to be stored/transported as an
cryogenic (deep-cooled) liquid at-104 degree Celsius. In contrast
with the overseas peers, the Group is more cost effective as it is able
to capitalise on its existing well-established local terminal networks,
which possess members with thorough understanding of the China
market, including relevant regulations and licensing requirements.

Positioned for the future, Dragon Crown will overcome whatever
challenges that may come, and thrive as a leading integrated terminal
service provider in China. Such dogged determination is what will
allow the Group to continue creating value for its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

EREBRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, since the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on 10 June 2011 (the “Listing
Date”) and up to 31 December 2011 (the “Period Under Review”), the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.
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DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 executive
directors, and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Company has adopted the recommended best practice
under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its
membership comprising independent non-executive directors.
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The Board comprises the following directors: EFERRETIES:

Executive directors: WITES

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman) RER&AE(FE)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer) PRS2 oLt (7T BAB %)

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin HRBLE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming PR=IB 2+

Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen BtRE ST

Independent non-executive directors: B EMITES ¢

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2SR E

Mr. LUO Shijie SRt A

Mr. ZHU Wujun KEELA

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Period Under Review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all non-executive directors have made various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. NG
Wai Man, Ms. CHAN Wan Ming and Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged where necessary.

BOARD MEETINGS

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

As the Company was listed on 10 June 2011, one Board meeting
was held during the Period Under Review for approving the financial
and operating performance. The attendance rate at this meeting
was 100%. From 2012 onwards, the Board will take appropriate
arrangements for holding at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals.

The attendance records of each director at the Board meeting during
the Period Under Review are set out below:

Name of Director

EEng

Executive directors HITES
Mr. NG Wai Man RERSE
Mr. TING Yian Ann BRE LRt
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin HRBRE
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming PRE=IS 20+
Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen AR ST
Independent non-

executive directors BAFHITES
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2R E
Mr. LUO Shijie frSugsntas
Mr. ZHU Wujun KRERAE

RVER - ARBNEREELHHER
NMREEER -

SHBITRBRE B FE

BARRER2011F6 4108 LMK - K
ANRREEHRERTT —AESTEgH
UHAEMBREERE -BRAEFEEH
ZHEER100% - 201261 - EFEH
HEGHE L EL8FEHRTHNAE

TR NEBFEST R

REESE SEEREFSIH LR
FCERELSIIAT

Attendance/Number
of Meetings

HERE ERAE

1/1
11
11
1/1
11

11
11
11
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.

Currently, the Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 143.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.
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Principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

As the Company was listed on 10 June 2011, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held during the Period Under Review. From
2012 onwards, Nomination Committee will conduct meeting at least
once a year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

As the Company was listed on 10 June 2011, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the Period Under Review. From
2012 onwards, Remuneration Committee will conduct meeting at
least once a year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Woujun, (including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Period Under
Review to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, and the re-appointment of the
external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out below:

Name of Audit

Committee Member

EREZEEREHE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen BIHIREE
Mr. LUO Shijie SRR A
Mr. ZHU Wujun KRERAE

FERERRE

ERZEERE-RBIENTES(R
R REBRREEER B IIFNITE
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SER  ENRERERINEZEED
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o EHARBPBHRBMELL - WEEE
E R RREERGMERRERF AR
ERBRIEBEK

ERZEeRNMBENEANBRIT=ZRE
i NEMVBERERRSES  MHEHRK
BREF AR ZARMEENERER
R RAR PP A R ERT R EIMNERZELAD

BRZBERZHFEHIINT

Attendance/Number
of Meetings

HERE ERRE

3/3
3/3
3/3
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The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Period Under Review.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
1o be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sEf&EEZERERA A

EZZEgEEBEMAEBRANETRA
MBHIAREZE2011F12 AT HIEFE Y
EEIZIZEVTEIRE -

BHETHZEESTR

AR BB AN _E A8 B M B+ A a3
TAEBETELEL G2 EESTH([12E
SPRI) ©
ARREAERERERAREN &F
DHERNEBESREAC E T2 o

RRBIINE LA BETR B AR R R QMR (E

HRENREBETZESFRDREEME
sl([REZ®EES)) - RIERELFRERR

EHESRH o

BARRMM REEANREEREES
[EE

ESHMERRMAZERE

EERRFEANTHREA QAT EE20114F
12 A31 BItFEMBRER 2 ET -

EFERARBLETRARLLEEH
E O RF MRS  RESHERR
HRBERRENEAE AW SHZ
A

EEECRESSRHELEHRARER
UEEESGHARAZM BRI EDRAT
Al AHREEEHE -



Corporate Governance Report

EREBRE

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young,

in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

BRIEERI
Audit Services ZEARTS
— Annual audit —FEEZ
— Initial public offering —BRARAREE
Non-audit Services IERZBAR TS
— Review of interim results —ERP IS
— Taxation services — RRIE RS

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the Period Under Review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations.
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Fees Paid/Payable (HKS)

BN BNEA(BY)

985,000
520,000

320,000
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1,927,700
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The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on on pages 52 to 141.

The Board has not recommmended the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2011.

The Board has recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK5 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on 16 May 2012. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial
position.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited financial statements,

is set out on page 142. The summary does not form a part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2011 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities since the
Listing Date up to 31 December 2011.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are

set out in note 31 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 56 and 57, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$545.2 million
(2010:HK$263.0 million), of which approximately HK$55.5 million
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In accordance
with Section 34 of the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out
of the amount of approximately HK$431.5 million (2010:HK$244.8
million) of the Company’s share premium account subject to a
solvency test and the provisions of the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 99.8% and 46.9% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 48.2% and
23.8% of the total cost of services for the year.

Save as disclosed below, none of the directors or any of their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had beneficial interests in the Group’s top five
suppliers or customers referred to above:

Dragon Crown Investments Limited (“DC Investments”), which is
owned as to 98% and 2% by Mr. Ng Wai Man and Mr. Chong
Yat Chin, is one of the top five customers of the Group under the
Phenol Storage Agreement as detailed below in the section headed
“Connected Transactions”.
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DIRECTORS EE

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and RAFEBEEEAREBHIL - EBZ A

up to the date of this report were: NSIEEYEE
Executive directors: HITES:

Mr. Ng Wai Man (Chairman) RER&AE(FRE)
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (Chief executive officer) PR E = (TTIAREL)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HABFEE

Ms. Chan Wan Ming PR=S 22+

Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BRR ST
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHTES:
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2R E

Mr. Luo Shijie SRt FE A

Mr. Zhu Wujun KRERAE

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the BIEAABZIRMAFE A1) RERL
Company, Mr. Ng Wai Man, Ms. Chan Wan Ming and Mr. Kwan B PBREEw+ MEIRREEBERERE
Chun Yuen are subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming HIRETA® MGEET BEFEERIE
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- SRIE(T o

election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence AATEWEEIBIIERITES 2 EEE

from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date VIR BRASRERHNZEREE
of this report still considers them to be independent. YEL o
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ng Wai Man, Ms. Chan Wan Ming and Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen
have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of
three years which commenced on 1 December 2010 and is subject
to termination by either party giving not less than three months’
written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 37 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:—
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()  Interest in the shares of the Company () RERAERRMLZ R
Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of directors Interests Interests Total of the Company
EERRARE
BRTRE
2 AR ARER #st BHEIH
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERAE(REE]D 852,000  778,902,0002 779,754,000 70.26%
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (‘M. TNG)  REZEE([RELE]) - 33,380,0009 33,380,000 3.00%
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") 3 HE &£ ([H%£]) 762,000 15,950,000¢ 16,712,000 1.50%
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN") BREB 7+ ([fRz L)) 184,000 - 184,000 0.01%

Note: BisE -

1. Al interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were 1. BERERRARNDZFIERERIRITE -

long positions

2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 2.

Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore is deemed to be interested in a total of
778,902,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.

3. Mr. TING is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 3.

Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”) and therefore is deemed
to be interested in 33,380,000 shares of the Company held by
Ansen.

4. Mr. CHONG is the beneficial owner of all issued share capital of 4.

Silver Coin International Limited (“Silver Coin”) and therefore is
deemed to be interested in 15,950,000 shares of the Company
held by Silver Coin
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the
Company

Name of

associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity
EENR BELEER 54
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner
RoEE pab EmEAA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner
RoLE BB EnEAA
Mr. TING Ansen Beneficial owner
FRSTAE EnEAA
Mr. CHONG Silver Coin Beneficial owner
A EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, so far as is known to the directors of
the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

(i) MARRBEEERN 2R

Number of shares
held in associated

Percentage of
existing issued
share capital

of the associated

corporation corporations
REEEERE
REBEZEFRERS BRTREIEIL
40 100%
10 100%
20 100%
30 100%
B EitEEEN 0 201112 H31H - K

NRAEENTZTHRABYERARAL
HRBOEE Z KD - MERMHHES

hEAE AR

FERRZEGRNE

MR20115F12A31H » AR R E=EFTH
THIATHEZE(WIERRRESHEETT
BAB)RARE 2D RBEKRGO RS
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155 336 IR ARLE N B 7L
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares existing issued

or underlying shares share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity held in the Company of the Company
)i N ERQATREDE

REREE 5% FristEE R &5 TRABHNE S

Lirun Beneficial owner® 762,402,000 68.70%

Wb EnEBEAQ

Note: BiE -

1. The interest of the substantial shareholder in the shares of the 1. EERERARFRN ZERERITFRE

Company was long position.
2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 2. RAETDNBERHEBITRAZERE

Lirun and therefore is deemed to be interested in 762,402,000
shares of the Company held by Lirun.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors
of the Company are not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2011.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed since the
effective date of the Deed and up to 31 December 2011. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed on the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and has been effectively enforced.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval
requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the directors
confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed
annual caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction TR ZEHRRFEIHN2011F 2

amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2011:— FEFREEBRZ 55
Annual cap Actual transaction amount
ER IR ERRSE
Approx. Approx.
nE nE
Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000) (HK$'000) (RMB'000) (HK$'000)
BERs BHEAT (ARBFT) (L)  (ARBFR) (F&m)
(A Related Party Terminal B A LEARK S
Service Agreements
() Phenol Storage Agreement DC Investments 2,880 3,456 2,830 3,468
ABREERE EMCIER
(i) Ningbo Ningxiang Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon 3,620 4,161 2,168 2,611
Storage Agreement Crown Chemical International Trade
EREMRERE Company Ltd. (‘Ningbo DC')
ERRHE A TEIR
EHRRAR (5N
(ii) DC Investments DC Investments
Storage Agreement
R IR S EMCIER 2,320 2,667 2,514 3,028
8,820 10,284 7,562 9,107
(B)  Pipe Racks Agreements EEE
() Pipe Racks Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreement Park Company Limited
ERRBE (‘Nanjing CIPC") 8,200 9425 7,791 9,382
AR EIEEBRAT
(lEmCIPC))
(i) Security Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreement Park Public Services Company
Re BB hE Limited (‘Nanjing CIPPS)
AREIXERARERER
BARR(TERCPPS) 889 1,022 889 1,071
9,089 10,447 8,680 10,453
(C)  Office Lease Agreement DC Investments
BREHEEDR EMCIER 1,494 1,404
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Related Party Terminal Service Agreements

The Group entered into three related party terminal service
agreements, namely Phenol Storage Agreement, Ningbo
Ningxiang Storage Agreement and DC Investments Storage
Agreement (collectively the “Related Party Terminal Service
Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Listing Rules
14A.25 and 14A.26, the transactions under the Related Party
Terminal Service Agreements and the annual cap amounts of
the transactions thereunder have been aggregated. Details
of the Related Party Terminal Service Agreements are as
follows:—

(@ Phenol Storage Agreement

On 19 April 2011, the Group and DC Investments
entered into the Phenol storage agreement (the “Phenol
Storage Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide DC Investments with terminal and
storage services for Phenol at the Nanjing terminal. The
term of the Phenol Storage Agreement is for the period
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012. The fees
for the services provided are determined by the storage
capacity of the tank at the Nanjing terminal and the lease
term with reference to the market price.

(b)  Ningbo Ningxiang Storage Agreement

On 1 January 2010, the Group and Ningbo DC entered
into a storage agreement (the “Ningbo Ningxiang
Storage Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide Ningbo DC with terminal and storage
services for Methanol at the Ningbo terminal. The term
of the Ningbo Ningxiang Storage Agreement is for a
period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012. The
fees for the services provided are determined by the
quantity of the liquid chemical handled and the lease
term at the Ningbo terminal with reference to the market
price. Pursuant to the mutual agreement between the
Group and Ningbo DC, the Ningbo Ningxiang Storage
Agreement was terminated with effect from 1 July 2011.
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(c) DC Investments Storage Agreement

On 1 January 2010, the Group and DC Investments
entered into a storage agreement (the “DC Investments
Storage Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide DC Investments with terminal and
storage services for Phenol at the Ningbo terminal. The
term of the DC Investments Storage Agreement is for
the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.
The fees for the services provided are determined by the
quantity of liquid chemical handed and the lease term at
the Ningbo terminal with reference to the market price.

(B) Pipe Racks Agreements

The Group entered into the Pipe Racks Services Agreement
and the Security Services Agreement (collectively the “Pipe
Racks Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26, the transactions under the Pipe
Racks Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the
transactions thereunder have been aggregated.
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In March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPC entered into
a pipe racks services agreement (the “Pipe Racks Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease
to the Group the pipe racks for the Acetic Acid pipelines and
Methanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Pipe Racks Services Agreement was supplemented by (i) a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2007, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the Vinyl acetate and Acetic Anhydride pipelines
at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (ii) a supplemental
agreement dated 12 October 2007, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the
Ethylene pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; and
(i) a supplemental agreement dated June 2008, pursuant to
which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the sub-pipelines of the Group connecting to the
pipelines of two customers of Celanese. The Pipe Racks
Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from 15 March
2007 to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for a further
five years upon expiry unless the parties thereto terminate
the Pipe Racks Services Agreement. The fees payable for the
pipe racks rental by the Group are principally determined by
the occupied area of pipelines in the pipe racks rented to the
Group by Nanjing CIPC subject to adjustment with reference
to bank lending interest rate, consumer price index, inflation,
etc.,with terms no less favourable than those offered by other
independent third parties in the ordinary course of business.

In addition, in March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPPS,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, entered into
a security services agreement (the “Security Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPPS agreed to
provide security services for the pipe racks rented by the
Group at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. Nanjing CIPPS
shall provide security, patrol and monitor services of the
Group’s pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Security Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from
15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022. The fees payable for the
security services by the Group are principally determined by
the length of pipe racks which requires the provision of security
services by Nanjing CIPPS with terms no less favourable than
those offered by other independent third parties in the ordinary
course of business.
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(C) Office Lease Agreement

On 12 November 2010, an office lease agreement (the
“Office Lease Agreement”) was entered into between DC
Investments as landlord and the Group as tenant in respect
of the premises located at Unit No. 3 on the 18th Floor of
Convention Plaza, Office Tower, No. 1 Harbour Road, Hong
Kong, with a gross floor area of approximately 2,227 square
feet for a term commencing on 1 August 2010 and expiring
on 31 December 2012. The property is currently occupied by
the Group for office use. The rental payment under the Office
Lease Agreement is determined with reference to the market
rate.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. With respect to the DC Investments Storage
Agreement as disclosed above, the actual transaction amount was
RMB2,514,000, which exceeded the annual cap of RMB2,320,000
as disclosed in the Prospectus. The combined annual caps for the
Related Party Terminal Service Agreements, as defined above,
was RMB8,820,000 by summation, which was higher than the
aggregate transaction amounts of RMB7,562,000 for the Related
Party Terminal Service Agreements. Except for the matter described
herein, the auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in page 44 in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 37 to
the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZEAMHRE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z ik

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 141, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBERE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

6 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011412 A31 BILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B RE FRxT T
REVENUE PN 6 240,675 233,024
Cost of service provided TR AR A AR (102,399) (89,583)
Gross profit EA 138,276 143,441
Other income HAA 7 2,351 11,817
Administrative expenses TE R (31,988) (29,094)
Finance costs LRV 8 (8,220) (8,930)
Share of profits and losses of: FE( a7 & B 1E
Associates il /NG| 2,177 5,305
Jointly-controlled entities HEEFIEE 5,961 2,654
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A=A 9 108,557 125,193
Tax Big 12 (5,319) (8,036)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 103,238 117,157
Attributable to: LA AL FEAG -
Owners of the Company KABHER A 13 90,076 96,745
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 13,162 20,412
103,238 117,157
EARNINGS PER SHARE BATEBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO RS AEF GB)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK cents)
Basic AR 15 9.15 11.73
Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 14 to BRAFEEZ AR BANFBEERY SRR T
the financial statements. 14 »
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2011 EHZE2011F 12 A31 BILFE

REZERER

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates:
Changes in exchange reserve

Share of other comprehensive
income of jointly-controlled entities:
Changes in exchange reserve

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note
FI5E

FREF

HitZE WA

B E A A
Hip 2EMA
3 G R B

FEIE KRS B
Hitp 2 EWA
IS R E)

BEIBINERH
EH =R

FAEE
WA REHE
AT AL

RAREEE A 13
IEIE SR RS

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRET TET
103,238 117,157
1,191 842
959 676
24,758 18,301
26,908 19,819
130,146 136,976
114,411 114,650
15,735 22,426
130,146 136,976
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

31 December 2011 2011412 531 8

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Gooadwill

Investments in associates

Investments in jointly-controlled entities

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans

Due to the former ultimate holding
company

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

VE R By

i LS
kS

PREsE N R E

RARZEHEEHRE

BN mER
H A & KR
FRBEERE

RBEE

&

e B

BN mER
H A & W RR

ReMRSEFEY

RBEERE

B
B 5B 28
SHEETRR
BB A R
ATRE
R
RBAESE
REREFE

REERRBAE

FRBEE
FHERITER
EREARE

FRBABRE
BEFE

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEEEERER AT

22

23

26

27

26
28

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
546,547 541,742
42,975 41,906
1,210 1,210
22,973 23,148
27,313 25,780
= 7,132
641,018 640,918
4,152 2,416
39,857 45,152
4,241 10,008
403,243 46,611
451,493 104,187
35,572 35,511
144,474 56,472
= 249

54 629
180,100 92,861
271,393 11,326
912,411 652,244
11,935 162,188
5,663 6,730
17,598 168,918
894,813 483,326




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
n'l-\ézﬁxzrﬁ%ﬂﬁ)‘ﬂl%

31 December 2011 2011412 531 8

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
GE FHT T
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners RATEBA
of the Company PE{E R
Issued share capital BEITRA 29 110,966 83
Reserves fEf 31 683,375 437,839
Proposed final dividend EEAARE 14 55,483 =
849,824 437,922
Non-controlling interests FEiE R E R 44,989 45,404
TOTAL EQUITY EAE 894,813 483,326
Ng Wai Man Ting Yian Ann
RER RE=
Director Director
EF E2ZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011412 A31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

MiAREARRR

Exchange Proposed
Issued Reserve fluctuation final Non-
capital Share  funds'  Capital  resene  Refained dividend controlling Total

BT premium BF  resene  EFR®  pofs  EERE Tt inests  equly
BE RBEE B ERGR BE  RER ks HElER  BaiE
Notes — HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSGO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS00
W f L At FET fEr AT T 7 P
(Note 34(aJi) (Note 31(a)) (Note 31
(2310 (K2 31aln) (K& snalfi)

3
=it

At January 2011 RONE1R1A 8 4767 6,436 2,92 5584 107,850 - B 45404 483,306
Protor e year RN - - - - - 00 - W 1318 10328
Othercomprefiensive ncome forthe year; EMEfAENA
Share of chenges nexchenge ErBe0an
Tesne fassociles EHEED - - - - - - - A
Shre o changesnexchange FliAREHEE
reseneof onty-contoled entes HERERRY - - - - 99 - - %) - %)
Exchenge dferences on tansaton of RENZHN
foregn opatons EjzE - - - - D% - - DI 2 U
Totacomprehensive income forte year EREANNEE - - - - M5 00 - 15T 130146
Oapialisaion e Eian o) 84T () - - - - - - - -
Issue o new s el 290 B466 204662 - - - - - B - B
Shareissue expenses EAqlG - (5509 - - - - - (5509 - (5509
Appropriaton o stautoryresene A5ieRE - - W - - (4 - (134) 1% -
Dhicends declyred onon-cortroling meress S Z AR 258 - - - - - - - - (16284 (16284
Proposed il dhicend EERBRE 14 - - - - - [y 5548 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RO0t1E12A31H 1096 431509%  T76% 20982 80,169 141,019% 55483 8498 499 804818
* The reserve funds comprise the share of reserves of associates * ZEREE S BERME S AR R ERE
and jointly-controlled entities of HK$3,958,000 (2010: & 88 19 % & 3,958,000 JT (2010 4F -
HK$3,709,000). 3,709,000/ 7T )
** These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of i ZERFREREAKGEVBEMRARAD
HK$683,375,000 (2010:HK$437,839,000) in the consolidated A 683,375,000/ T (20104 :
statement of financial position. 437,839,000/ 7T)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011412 A31 BILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

ROTIEE AR RS
Bxchange Proposed
Issued Resene flctuation fing Non-
capial Share finds”  Captd  resene  Refaned  dlidend cortroling Total
BT premium B oeew  ERRD o BERE Tl ileess  eqiy
BE RbEE B EAER B RO it B e BegE
Note — HKSOO0  HKSO000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSO00  AKS00O
Wt fEr TET tEr TEr AT fr T TET Fin
(Note 1) Note i) (Ve 1)
(sem) s (s
At January 2010 RN0E1518 2,342 - 503 - 3029 152166 WA o915 267487
Proft o tre year g - - - - - K N TV [TAL
Othercompefiensie income forhe year; EMEfAENA
S of changes nexchange ErBEAa0
Teseneof associaes EXfERY - - - - 82 - 8 - 82
Shae o changesinexchange Rl ARIEHER
reserve of o conroled entes HESERAD - - - - 676 - 676 = 676
Exchenge ferences on tanseon of RERNZHN
foregn operatons EizE - - - - 1 - 1581 2004 1B
Tota comprefiensie income forthe year EnAEREE - - - - I %k 50 246 136076
Arising fom the Reorganisaion PR mBY 200 - 36 - - 208603 - 0BA8
Acquistion ofnon-contoling et WEsiEs 90 5 1250 - oW - = ST 9y 1250
Aopropriaon o stautoryresene ASieRE - S - -8y ) 0 -
Dhicends deckred onon-controling meress S Z AR 28 - - - - - b BN (8] (B0
Diicends declared REN = = = = - (1319 (134:198) - (134199
At31 December 2010 R0I0E12A31H 8 u4rert 6436 202" 968%™ 10780" 18192 B4 483306
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV_\é EE ﬁ\;ﬁ% 13—%

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011412 A31 BILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Revaluation of pre-existing interest in
an acquired subsidiary to fair value
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Share of profits and losses of:
Associates
Jointly-controlled entities

Increase in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in accounts
receivable
Decrease in an amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease in other payables
and accruals
Decrease in an amount due to a director

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Notes
B
RETHESE
ZEERE
BB AT Al
AT RIERE
BE KA
RITHEUA 7
e
TERT 3
HEEH 9
EXRNil G ) NG
EmENTE 7
HEME - KB
R IE E B R 9

FEIE T FI 2 m A R
ik /NC]

HEEFERE

FEEMN
FEUERFOR A
(3B m)
FEUIF R A R
KBRS
BN - BE ME M EUGKIR
A,/ ()
LA A R0R K e AT
AR
e E SRR

REmBHRE
BB

REEHAFRESMEFE

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
108,557 125,193
8,220 8,930
(1,109) (854)
34,203 31,888
952 908

- (2,488)

199 620
(2,177) (5,305)
(5,961) (2,654)
142,884 156,238
(1,580) (530)
7,318 (8,349

- 213

1,350 (4,864)
(5,700) (3,906)
- (1,996)
144,272 136,806
(7,124) (10,936)
137,148 125,870




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2011 EHZE2011F 12 A31 BILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Arising from initial public offering
and over-allotment

Proceeds from issue of

shares arising from the Reorganisation

Decrease in an amount due

to the former ultimate holding company

Repayment of bank loans

New bank loans

Dividend paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

Note
FI5E

REZHEL
ZRERE
BEWE  WE
®EEE
HEWE - BER
S AEIE E iS58
W iE — B A A 32
BFIE
BB

KREEBME ()
REREFE

BMEEHEEZ
BERE

U hE FEAT AR s S 37T
BAn PR 50R

KEBERARAEE
K FBFERC AR
EHEANET
B AR S 500
FEM AT SAR IR AR A B
RIERD
BERITER
FHBRITER
EfAE
ST IR

R IR
EfFE

MEEBHE(FA)

BEenEFa

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(5,908) (17,388)
- 40

- (2,840)
1,109 854
8,961 4,646
4,162 (14,688)

- 12,510
302,294 -
- 208,603

(249) (199,235)
(85,817) (160,566)
18,064 209,050
- (134,198)
(11,630) (17,052)
(8,220) (8,930)
214,442 (89,818)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV_\é EE ﬁ\;ﬁ% 13—%

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE 2011412 A31 BILFE

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Note

:I
=
P

RERRSSEY
810548

RENZ RS
BRSEEN

% )
MR

RERZRE
kEEEEY

ReRRESEEY

RO AT

RERZRE R

ReEEY 24
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2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
355,752 21,364
46,611 23,249
880 1,998
403,243 46,611
403,243 46,611




Statement of Financial Position
B R AR R

31 December 2011 2011412 531 8

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FExT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB ARIMIEE 19 256,423 230,080
Total non-current assets IEREEELE 256,423 230,080
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR ek
other receivables H (b pE U R I8 23 111,769 36,369
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 24 293,980 =
Total current assets MENEELE 405,749 36,369
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals HAi I RIEREER 25 6,044 3,392
Total current liabilities mEaERE 6,044 3,392
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 399,705 32,977
NET ASSETS EEFE 656,128 263,057
EQUITY R
Issued share capital BEITIAR 29 110,966 83
Reserves ] 31(b) 489,679 262,974
Proposed final dividend EEARHRE 14 55,483 =
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 656,128 263,057
Ng Wai Man Ting Yian Ann
RER REZ
Director Director
EE EZE
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principle place of business is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention
Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The
Group is principally engaged in terminal storage and handling
of liquid chemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) described
in the section headed “Reorganisation” and in Appendix
V “Statutory and General Information” to the Company’s
Prospectus dated 30 May 2011, the Company became the
holding company of all the companies now comprising the
Group on 29 November 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the income statement. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the income statement or retained
profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010 incorporated the financial statements
of the companies now comprising the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control pursuant to the Reorganisation had
been accounted for using merger method of accounting. The
acquisition of the interests of all other subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2010 was accounted for using the
acquisition method.

The merger method of accounting involves incorporating
the financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the then controlling shareholder of the Company.

The net assets of the combining entities or business
are combined using the existing book values from the
then controlling shareholder’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or the excess of the
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
investment at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 included the
results of each of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under common control, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1
Amendment

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32
Amendment

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 19

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS
7 Disclosures for First-Time Adopters

Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact

of HKAS 24 (Revised), the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 EHBFEEBREE(Z)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption from the
general related party disclosure requirements for transactions
with a government and entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same government
as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for related parties
has been revised to reflect the changes in the definitions of
related parties under the revised standard. The adoption
of the revised standard did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. Details of the
related party transactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in note 37 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKFRS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 7

Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-Time Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offseting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income®
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PR ERARBTRE

2.3

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 12 Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Amendments

Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*
HKAS 32 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial
liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in the income statement or
as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In
instances where the contingent consideration does not fall
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.
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PR ERAR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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PR ERARBTRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in
the income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.
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PR ERAR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and reserves of its jointly-controlled
entities are included in the income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its jointly-controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled
entities is included as part of the Group’s investments in jointly-
controlled entities.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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PR ERARBTRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%

Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the period the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rental payables under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets of the Group in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and other receivables and deposits.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in interest income in
the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans
and in other operating expenses for receivables.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERARBTRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or decreased by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities which include other payables
and accruals, amount due to the former ultimate holding
company and interest-bearing bank loans are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS SRR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is currently an enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories
Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use in

the operation, and are stated at cost. Cost is determined on
the first-in, first-out basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement
is recognised outside the income statement, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled entities, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and a jointly-controlled entities, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(b)  rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. All differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive profit or loss).
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

FEEHBREE (2

BB L

ETIERT BRI HRESAE
B RREREA L

@ BEAT/S—BALTZZALZ
BETIREKE - MazAL

) EHEHRESAEE
(i) HAKEEEATE =K

(i) ABAEBENAEEEAFA
MEBEEAS -

-

() mEBRRisEBER—%
B> KBAT

i) HEBAS—EEAOHE
AERABLE(RRE
BHEAT - TATRA
EEHBAT)

(i) FHERIAKEYRE—
%’ .

ZMBERE

vy ZER/E=TEENS
2hE - Mir—EEBR/Z
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting or
in the case of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), by the board of directors. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

FEEHBREE (2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
accounts receivable arising from the inability of its debtors to
make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance.
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PR AR BT RE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Usetful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on
the straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment’s
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be five to
thirty years. Changes in the expected level of usage and/or
the period over which future economic benefits are generated
could impact the economic useful lives of the assets and,
therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2011 was
HK$1,210,000 (2010: HK1,210,000). Further details are given
in note 18 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RBESBPEH
No separate analysis of segment information is presented by HRAAREBFRIBI0% A ~ EE
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and B ER B A B N iR B L 2 R TS
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid SHEHE T PR IR AR 27 - AR B
chemicals business in Mainland China. EE3| D EEREIL DT ©
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to RERAREBURA 10% KA FHEE
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below: BEEHIASZINT -
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Customer A =2E A 112,920 112,143
Customer B ®F B 101,513 95,743
Customer C ®FC 21,592 20,400
REVENUE 6. IxA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, is derived from WA - BIAREBRSERE  BRERAKN
terminal storage and the handling of liquid chemicals during the FEANNREERNBEFEFMNE
year. I8 o

Annual Report 2011 E#RE _



Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR BT RE

7. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income is as follows:

Government subsidies *
Bank interest income
Gross rental income
Revaluation of pre-existing interest
in an acquired subsidiary to fair value
Others

Balance represented subsidies for maintenance of jetty from

a PRC port authority. The subsidy is subject to application
lodged by the Group and reviewed by the relevant port
authority of Nanjing. Amounts recognised for the year ended
31 December 2010 were subsidies for the period from
August 2009 to December 2010, the applications of which

were made by the Group in 2010.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

Interest on an amount due to the former
ultimate holding company

7.
B RE
RITFBHA
ikl ONE
EbAKENEARRE

BmENTE

HAth

8.

ARAFATHREER

RITERHFE
e R SARIE AR A B
FIREFE
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Htnr A
BEABADHAT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
- 7,647
1,109 854
470 427
- 2,488
772 401
2,351 11,817

* RIERIE R EBBYPEBER
S HIFHEL - ZFEBL BB AEE R
X A 5% W B AR A RS S
#t o B E2010F12 A31 A LEF
ERRN S ERENR2009F8 A&

20104 12 AHAREI A MRE - s Swah
AAREER 2010 F 85 -
U= 523
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
8,220 8,773
- 157
8,220 8,930
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PR AR BT RE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases of buildings
and pipe racks

Auditors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration

Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration):

Wages, salaries and other benefits

Pension scheme contributions

Gross rental income
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Revaluation of pre-existing interest

in an acquired subsidiary
to fair value
Foreign exchange differences, net

9.
Notes
FtEE
e 16
Bt S
B 55 17
BFRERKE
AR REHRE
(NE
ZE A &
SEME 10
BIRA(TELE
EE5ME) ¢
IE - FrekEMmET
RIS ET B TR
e A BT 7

W

HEWE - BB R
RIEER BB
BB E AR
RAERRENFE

PELERE - FE

FRiRanaF
AEBHKRBAERNE MK (5
A)
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
THET THET
34,203 31,888
952 908
11,281 8,938
985 320
8,015 1,087
13,207 10,402
2,723 1,799
15,930 12,201
(470) (427)
23 25
(447) (402)
199 620
- (2,488)
(3,198) 365
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PR ERARBTRE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEE&
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the R TR B R B S A A EF 2 161
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies R BENENEEMESOT ¢

Ordinance, is as follows:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THT
Fees e
— Executive directors and non-executive —HITEER
directors HHITES - =
— Independent non-executive directors — BN IEHITES 540 45
Other emoluments of executive directors: #1172 = H (b
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYREF 7,439 989
Pension scheme contributions RIRE BT 36 3
8,015 1,037
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
E21 =427 Bife
e  REWEF SRR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TET
2011
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - 935 - 935
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEZiit - 3,002 - 3,002
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HRBEE - 1,300 12 1,312
Ms. Chan Wan Ming GES poa - 1,200 12 1,212
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BRERLE - 1,002 12 1,014
- 7,439 36 7,475
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM& (2Z)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration

B - 2R ’ikE
e  REWEF g U5 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR THET

2010
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - 78 - 78
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEREE - 618 - 618
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE - 109 1 110
Ms. Chan Wan Ming R=Bat - 100 1 101
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BiRRLE - 84 1 85
— 989 3 992
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FARAANBIBIIFRITEETSZMNZ
Company during the year were as follows: WS :
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2185 240 19
Mr. Luo Shi Jie FRitt 150 13
Mr. Zhu Wu Jun KRE 150 13
540 45
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent F QA FE SR N FER T T EE B fth
non-executive directors during the year (2010: Nil) B (2010 : &)
Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or B EXFrEE I - AREBERFERIL
payable by the Group to other directors of the Company during EEMEMKENARBEMEZEZH
the year (2010: Nil). B4 (2010 : =) o
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2010: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2010: Nil).

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
five (2010: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining three non-director, highest paid employees for the
year ended 31 December 2010 are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions BIRESET BRI

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2010: Nil).
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e EMEREMET

EEMe (&)

FR - AEEALEIFADHHENE
RAIEFHME  ERMALXEE
FA B RS S E R BRI
(20104 : &) ©

RAFEER - HEESHEXFRENR
REMMEOLE (20105 - &) -

RAFEANRAER=TMNEERER
ZEZ(2010F : M%) - HEMFE
R EXXHiFE10 - REEE2010F 12
A1 BEFEABRT=RIEETHES
ZE B E BB E I T

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT

- 843

- 35

- 878

HEH T 5 S E R I E R & =
EEMBEWMT :

Number of employees
EEWEE

2011 2010
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12,

INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong BNE— &5

Current — Elsewhere BIEA — Ecfth 30 75
Charge for the year NG
Overprovision in prior year A FE RS

Deferred — note 28 TEIE — M5 28

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2010: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
in Mainland China have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in Mainland China in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Enterprise Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to preferential tax
treatment with full tax exemption from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT”) for the first five profitable years, commencing from
1 January 2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction
in the EIT rate for the subsequent five years.

12. R

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
755 2,046
(710) =
5,274 5,990
5,319 8,036

ARAEERE T ARLERAERER
EEBEAERRRTOGMN - B E
R BB RSB (2010F : F) -
REBED BN L E TS E R
M EARBRITAR - 2B RER
RHRBEAERTHEAE -

RIRFT P BB EFSRE R E MK
(B 200841 A1 B#EARK)  RE
MONEDER TR EMERBH RS
—525% ° 8RR B B A HY
BARKEMEZHIBRER T

it o

RIREP BT &AM R mEREMR
TR S S B FR 2007 28R [ BAN 2
FISBEL]  XArBAR -
HRENRE IHETEARAR
ZBHEENRERFE - R2007 1 H 1
HEEhERMNFEAREFRMCE
Frisii ([2FER ) - Hie RG]
ZHTEMSHB TR
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12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. R\ (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before AR T M E B A B AT Bl AR =
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the B9 TE B R 5T H B @ AR BR B AR A
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position MR TER Y BRI R E AT
at the effective tax rate is as follows: RS BR AN TS
2011
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BB HBEARE st
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAT FHBTT
Profit/(loss) before tax B ALRF] (E8) (8,222) 116,779 108,557
Tax at the applicable tax rates RE AR ERRIE (1,357) 29,195 27,838
Lower tax rate due to concession HAREESTE TR = (28,440)  (28,440)
Income not subject to tax BEFRBUBA (120) - (120)
Expenses not deductible for tax G L0 1,477 = 1,477
Adjustment in respect of current tax BEFREBN AR A
of previous year R - (710) (710)
Effect of withholding tax on the R E AR B A
distributable profits of the Group’s NaE - BERAE K&
Mainland China subsidiary, associates ~ FL[F12 ] & 82 A] 7 fir
and jointly-controlled entities A TR R R - 5,274 5,274
Tax IR - 5,319 5,319
2010
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
aBE  RBIKREE HET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FHIT FAT
Profit/(loss) before tax BREGATE R, (E518) (5,104) 130,297 125,193
Tax at the applicable tax rates LEABERGTERNTIE (842) 32,574 31,732
Lower tax rate due to concession HRERSTHETE = (30,528) (30,528)
Income not subject to tax BERBIUIRA (76) = (76)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT AR X 918 - 918
Effect of withholding tax on the NS B AP B At BT
distributable profits of the Group’s AR BERRR
Mainland China subsidiary, associates  F£[F122 ] & 2 A] 7 fip
and jointly-controlled entities AR A 2 - 5,990 5,990
Tax B — 8,036 8,036
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12,

13.

14.

INCOME TAX (continued) 12.

The shares of tax attributable to associates and jointly-controlled
entities amounting to HK$361,000 (2010:HK$561,000) and
HK$2,242,000 (2010:HK$961,000) are included in shares of
profits and losses of associates and jointly-controlled entities,
respectively, in the consolidated income statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 13.

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the year included a loss of HK$6,389,000 (2010: loss
of HK$12,470,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS 14.

EERAR -2k
Epileeyeill
REAR S

Proposed final — HK5 cents per ordinary
share
Final dividends

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2010
represented dividends declared by the subsidiary, associates
and jointly-controlled entities of the Group of HK$134,198,000
and dividend declared to non-controlling interests of
HK$28,052,000. The related dividend rates are not presented
as such information is considered, by the directors of the
Company, not meaningful for the purpose of these financial
statements.

wm (&)

FE{EEtE AR REREH EBHIEAL
361,000/87T (20104 :561,000/87T)
52,242,000 7T (20104F : 961,000
BIL) ' B RIEFAGAERERA [E
G A A R 2k R ) B B A PR A
MRk EE] # o

FLFHA ARGERT

RNATHEE ARFARIGEE T
3% 6,389,000 & JL Ry ES 18 (2010 4F
12,470,000 T ET 1R ) - ERA R
RIS P RIE o

R
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEn TAT
55,483 -
- 162,250
55,483 162,250

RERZFH R BAREERRE
FREG LRBARBBIRILE o

HZE2010%F12 431 B L FERFR IR
BABRASENBAR  BEQARKR
HEEHEEBE SRS 134,198,000
BT RAEERERSIRDORKRE
28,052,000/ 7T - NARIEERAS
5 Eat &R AERERR B R W B
S o
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15. FRFWAAELSRRR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

BREABNZAEER

The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx FHET
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners KARHEE AE
of the Company, used in the s  ARETE
basic earnings per share calculation HRREAR A 90,076 96,745
Number of shares
RHEE
Shares [dvil
Weighted average number of ordinary AARBBEITEBERRN
shares of the Company in issue used IS ARGE

in the basic earnings per share calculation &R ZF| 984,190,405 825,000,000

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 includes the pro forma issued share capital of the
Company of 825,000,000 shares, which comprised the
following:

(i) 825,000 shares issued upon incorporation and during
the year ended 31 December 2010, details of which are
set out in note 29 (j) to (iv), and

(i)  the capitalisation issues of 824,175,000 shares (note 29

(V).

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:
At 1 January 2010
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2011

A

1201041 A1H
RE

g%

L&

5

201012 31 B
R2011E1 A1H

AR

g%

&

B

R2011F12 A31 B

Accumulated depreciation: Z:t#7E :

At 1 January 2010

Provided for during
the year-note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011

Provided for during
the year-note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2011

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2010

20101 A1 H
FREE-HE9

&
I 5 AR

7201012 31 B
R2011E1 A1H
FREE-HE9

irf:=
R
201112 A31 B

REFE:
201112 A31 B

7201012 31 B

16. ¥ - BER®E

Construction Buildings and Motor Office

in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
HRIE BTRESEY RE  BAERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAT TEL TAL
757 607,380 2,642 1,126 612,405
7,870 2,276 = 110 10,256
(6,327) 5,327 - - -

- (857) = 6) (863)

0 22,017 95 42 22,244
3,390 636,643 2,737 1,272 644,042
10,259 1,597 1,125 228 13,209
(8,651) 8,651 - - -
- (304) - - (304)

204 31,429 142 64 31,839
5,202 678,016 4,004 1,564 688,786

= 66,239 700 482 67,421

= 31,184 498 206 31,888

= (197) = 6) (208)

- 3,148 37 9 3,194

- 100,374 1,235 691 102,300

- 33,394 575 234 34,203
- (105) - - (105)

- 5,716 74 51 5,841

- 139,379 1,884 976 142,239

5,202 538,637 2,120 588 546,547
3,390 536,269 1,502 581 541,742
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16.

Certain of the Group’s buildings and structures with a net
carrying amount of HK$238,905,000 (2010: HK$234,330,000)
were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 26).

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17.
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 B8REE
Amortised during the year-note 9 S — 059
Exchange realignment bE
Carrying amount at 31 December M®12 A31 BRRAEE
Current portion mENER D
Non-current portion FERENE D

All the Group’s leasehold lands were held under long term
leases and were situated in Mainland China.

Certain of the Group’s leasehold lands with a net carrying
amount of HK$13,159,000 (2010: HK$12,824,000) were
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 26).

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

¥ mER®ME(E)

7K £ [E B | /% B A 238,905,00078 7T
(2010 4F : 234,330,000/ 7T ) M &
TREFRELEYMEERTRIT  1ER
MANE B RIT R B A AR (BT &
26) °

At LiE®
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
42,897 42,312
(952) (908)
2,069 1,493
44,014 42,897
(1,039) (991)
42,975 41,906

AEE2HEE LG REREORE
BRI B A

7K & [ 8K A /¥ 18 /413,159,000 7% 7T
(20104 : 12,824,000/ 70)F9%& T
ET BT TRT  (EARNAEE
BHRITRLE LR (F1sE26) ©
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18. GOODWILL 18. W8
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Cost at the beginning of the year FHIPKA 1,210 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary — note 32 W iE — B A Al — Mzt 32 - 1,210
Cost and net carrying amount at the FREA R IREFE

end of the year 1,210 1,210

Impairment testing of goodwill BEREIR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 9.4% and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an inflation
rate of 5%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwiill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

BREBEHEEZBELLREL
EmEERTREENREELSE
iz - AAJEEBERUR S RETR
AMEEZERENSE - MRERE
BATIRASREREMEL DFH
BREMAE - REREBAERZ
PrIRE59.4% - MBBHFHEHIER
EMERIEA 5% 2 BIREHER -

HERSEEEREBREER
ERERNEAEESDIBEER
%o T HPEREENGERS T
SR TR BRI S EE
EHR

HHRFE—ERZFTRXRBIEHA - X
RREABRSEDEUZRHER

LA
a0
ZoN

o

BRE-RREELEEEEHENX
ARWABRNELESBEFREET
BRI BRI -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. REAFRIRE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost R EmR&G B 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries R S NGIE O 256,422 230,079
256,423 230,080

RIMBARMBEREER 288
BETERY EEAR
RIERM B D AR UERES K

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the P RER
directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity

loans to the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEWNBATEBOT :
Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
ordinary share attributable to
Place of capital the Company
incorporation/ BT b /N Principal
Name registration ZER FE{k B #E activities
=L SRR S EE it AHEE Batt EX—E
Direct Indirect
HiE A4
Ocean Ahead Limited BVI US$100 100 — Investment holding
REEBARHS 10037 REZEK
Edford Investments Limited BVI US$1 = 100 Dormant
EEERAHES = TEE
Dragon Bussan International Hong Kong Ordinary — 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Dragon Bussan”) B US$600,000 and provision of
EAMESRAR ([EAME]) Non-voting marketing services
deferred WEER R
US$900,000 RH™S
(note a) e E AR TS
el
600,000 27T
BRFEEET
% 900,000 37T
(MizTa)

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEEEERER AT
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19. RBAFMERE (EF)

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share
Place of capital
incorporation/ BT
Name registration ZER
=L SEM AL R AHEE
Dragon Crown Hong Kong Ordinary
Petrochemicals &B  US$26,600,000
Terminal (Holdings) Non-voting
Limited deferred
EAARFE(RE) US$500,000
BRAF] (note a)
Rl
26,600,000 37T
BIRERIRLT
% 500,000 % 7T
(MizEa)
Dragon Source Industrial Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited &B  HK$26,000,000
B ITERAA Non-voting
deferred
HK$2,000,000
(note a)
Rl
26,000,000 77T
BRI
[% 2,000,000 % 7T
(MizEa)
Nanjing Dragon Crown PRC US$28,094,820
Liquid Chemical Terminal F 28,094,820 % %
Company Limited (“NJDC”)
MR R TEENSER
BRAR([FAREM])
Ocean Access Investments Hong Kong HKS$1
Limited i 1787

BREEAR AT

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

E NS
PE{ IR A
BIL

Principal
activities

FERE

Direct Indirect

DFE3

100 Investment holding
and provision of

finance and
management

services

TEER R

RMEB AN

B I AR TS

100 Investment holding
and provision of
accounting

services

TE AR R IR
SRR

88.61 Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
REBCE MR

T SR IE

100 Investment holding
and provision of
administrative and
technical services

BB R R AR

1T B ERF i AR 75
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19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any
dividends. On a winding-up the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the
ordinary shares of the respective companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, results in particulars of excessive

length.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

FEHEERE

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate are as follows:

19. REAFMERE (EZ)

20.

i -

(

a)

EREREER I EE T B
ﬁ/\%%'MﬁZHX%%K@?E%DE&Hﬂ%
BARBREMRRASHNE L
R BREEETEROFH AEE
WEEATAR B o POBRRES - E|IRR
BEERNIHAEA  AREEHEA
RIRBRBEET  BRERZHME
BREEETEROBR ZBA - &
ZRBREREHARNEBRS
)k #8%F100,000,000,000,000# 7T1&
BB =02 — °

EERS LR 2 ARFMNER
BEBUAFEREELZENBK
AEBABOPEEFE - EFRS
At A E AR EBRR 2 E

FHBRITE °
RREATNRE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
22,973 23,148

REBz TEHENFFBOT

Percentage of

Registered Place of equity interest
ordinary incorporation/ attributable to Principal
share capital registration the Group activities
Name BECEM MR AEEENG FEEK
=g SZERAFEE it 3t RET DL
Tianjin Tianlong Liquid US$1,950,000 PRC 65  Terminal storage
Chemicals Storage and 1,950,000 37T H and handling of
Transportation Co. Ltd* liquid chemicals
RERERBLTHE REE (LB
BRAR R TT R

#

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has
significant influence but not unilateral control over this
entity.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEEEERER AT
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. PHELATNRE (Z)
The above table lists the associate of the Company which, in BERA - FAlREGLARD 7] 2 B
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for ENREAFEXEELAEEZEN
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the BRAEBRBHIZEEFE &S
Group. To give details of other associate would, in the opinion RA - At A A R B R
of the directors, results in particulars of excessive length. 7 EBREENITE °
The following table illustrates the financial information of TR NEBBES A RNEEE E
the Group’s associates extracted from their management EIEEREMMIEER ¢
accounts:
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Assets BE 36,981 37,645
Liabilities afE 1,045 1,439
Revenue WA 16,481 21,669
Profit i ) 3,349 8,364

21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21. REREHEENRSE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH T FHET

Share of net assets JE(EEEFE 27,313 25,780
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21.
(continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities as at 31 December
2011 are as follows:

Particulars Place of

RERZHEREOKRE (E)

72011 12 A 31 Bz =B HFE2H
BEEMFBLT ¢

Percentage of

of issued incorporation/ Batt

shares held registration  Ownership Voting Profit Principal

Name BFEERT ML interest power*  sharing activities
£ RS it EEEEE REE* EGHER FTEEK
Ningbo Xinxiang RMB4,200,000 PRC 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemical 4,200,000 A R#& H and handling of
Store Co. Ltd.* liquid chemicals
EREFAREL REER
IERBRAR" SRR R
Ningbo Ningxiang RMB7,350,000 PRC 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals 7,350,000 A R #& H and handling of

Terminal Co. Ltd.*
BERENRCFHE
AR AR

The interests in the jointly-controlled entities are indirectly held
by the Company.

* Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint
control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT
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liquid chemicals
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21.

22.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

Shares of the jointly-controlled FEAG FE R4
entities’ assets and liabilities: EREERAE:
Current assets MBNEE
Non-current assets IEmENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Net assets BEFE

Share of the jointly-controlled FEAG FE R E B
entities’ results: E 5
Revenue A
Other income E A A
Total expenses BHX
Tax I8
Profit after tax Brifi& R 7

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Accounts receivable are non-interest bearing.

21.

22,

RERZFREOKRE (Z)

AEEHFIZEH BERNOM B AR

ZWRERMAT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
17,151 13,718
12,775 13,383
(2,613) (1,321)
27,313 25,780
17,969 6,999
47 153
18,440 7,152
(10,237) (3,537)
(2,242) (961)
5,961 2,654

FEURARRR

BRI EP —RAREMNFRIN - AEE
MEFPAZZEEEH - FEH—R
B30 K- EREFPHBFERAIA
EERZEG0 K - NEBEBKIEHIER
BEBYER - aREEEe TR
ATBEIER o FRUTRTRE BB A -
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22, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22, MR (Z)
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of RBEHR - BRIEZHR BB RBEEF
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of 1B 4 Hll A PR BBE R BR B D AT 20 T

provision, is as follows:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$000
TET THET
Current to 30 days BNHAZ= 30 X 35,899 41,598
31 to 60 days 31 £60 X 3,958 3,554
39,857 45,152

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not RRVERE A FE UK BR SR AV BR % D AT 40

considered to be impaired is as follows: T ¢

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR B HR AR E 39,857 43,676
Less than one month past due AR B A - 1,476
39,857 45,152

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT
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22,

23.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22, FEWIES (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to BE 2R B 5A 7 >R Rk (B B JE W k38 T B
customers for which there was no recent history of default. AN I R AR R B o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B %80 BB R (B A FE Y 5RIE T B AN R
to a number of independent customers that have a good SEBEERIFRRHENE TELE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the FER - BEBEERLER  KNARES
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision RE BN EEEETESAEH L
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as ZELERIIGIER BE W@ - ZELE
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and RIEBERERE ASEUERZE
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group ERFERERSNEREMINREE
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over S o ANS B BR A 4 14,851,000
these balances. Certain of the Group’s accounts receivable B IT(20104F : 14,241,000 7T ) U3
with a net carrying amount of HK$14,851,000 (2010: FRWEREIRETFIET - (EARA
HK$14,241,000) were pledged to banks to secure banking SERTRITREMER (3E26)
facilities granted to the Group (note 26).
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FfR  BRERAMERRE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FET THET
Prepayments TR 3,381 13,937 172 4,669
Deposits and other e R HE MR
receivables IR 860 3,203 111,597 31,700
4,241 17,140 111,769 36,369
Portion classified as current DA RENE E
assets #E (4,241)  (10,008) (111,769)  (36,369)
Portion classified as DERIEREEE
non-current assets BE 7> - 7,132 - -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values.

Hit B EREREIHARRE o B4
SAEBENEREERKIY EER
RIS MR AAR - ZFR
& KW IR ARE (A R E A FEH

4+

Eo
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BE&RBREEED

Group Company
rEE ¥ /N

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FBT FBIT FHET FHIT
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEERR 123,274 32,493 14,011 -
Time deposits TE BAfE SR 279,969 14,118 279,969 =
Cash and cash equivalents IR&RBESEEY 403,243 46,611 293,980 =

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$251,987,000 (2010: HK$30,204,000).

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT

RAIFREER - AEBUARBE
"3IR & & IR & 5B YiE 251,987,000
BT (20104 : 30,204,000 7T) ©

ARIETEE A R A - R
TR GEIN-F T N
W) RO TE - EIE RN EE RS
) AEEERE BRI
R YN TR e
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25, HMmEFARREREER
Group Company

REE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TE T FAT FET T
Other payables H e ERIR 19,216 15,548 - -
Accruals JEFFE A 16,356 19,963 1,089 3,392
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JETHIE A FIFIE - - 4,955 =
35,572 35,511 6,044 3,392

Other payables are non-interest bearing and are repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2011, included in other payables of the
Group was a payable of HK$1,233,900 (2010: HK$1,177,000)
due to the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management
Committee which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park Company Limited, a non-controlling interest
of the Group, representing the remaining outstanding
balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease. Upon certain
conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Management Committee, such as land levelling, the amount
will be settled.

H Al RIS T B RIZERKIE
& o RFHMENRBRETERDN
FREEEEQFERS

BB ARNESRREER - T8
KIRBRERE -

R2011F12 8318 - AEBEHtmfE
NHRIEABEENE L2 T EERE
ZEg(RASBFEERAFERL
BTXRERARNEAR) KA
1,233,900/ 7T (20104F : 1,177,000/
7o) - HEREESTEN A& M
FERTR AR BB FRIAATE - FEAR(LE
TXRERZE2EKE TIGRME(A
TH TR 1% - ZFIERTEE o
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Current
BN
Secured

BHEMA

Non-current

ERET D
Secured

BiEH

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:

26. FFEHBITER

Within one year or on demand
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT

Effective
interest 2011 2010
rate (%) Maturity HK$°000 HK$’000
EREFZE (%) FIEAE FET BT
The People’s 2012 (2010: on demand 144,474 56,472
Bank of China (“PBOC”) to 2011)
base rate, plus 5% /PBOC 2012 (20104 :
base rate, discounted by BERE 2011 46F)
5%-10%/HIBOR+1%
R A RERTT
([HEARRIT])
EAFE - J15%, HFEH
ARBITEERE -
T 5E 5%-10%/
BBRITREERENE 1%
PBOC base rate, 2013 (2010: 2012 to 11,935 162,188
discounted by 5% 2013)
B A RERTTEAERE - 20134
P& 5% (20104 : 20124
ZE2013%F)
156,409 218,660
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
DT
SRITEFAR A T HEEE
1 FRFIRER 144,474 56,472
E2F 11,935 150,808
EIESF(BEEREMF) - 11,380
156,409 218,660
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26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

The Group’s bank loans were secured by:

(i)

(i

corporate guarantees granted by the Company. As
at 31 December 2010, the bank loans were secured
by corporate guarantees granted by Dragon Crown
Investments Limited (“DC Investments”), the Company’s
former ultimate holding company and a related company
as at 31 December 2011, and fixed charges over total
bank deposits of HK$93,160,000 by the DC Investments
and a director of the Company. The fixed charges of
bank deposits and corporate guarantees granted by
DC Investments were released and replaced by the
corporate guarantees granted by the Company upon
listing on 10 June 2011;

fixed charges over certain buildings and structures
with a net carrying amount of HK$238,905,000 (2010:
HK$234,330,000) (note 16);

fixed charges over certain leasehold land with a
net carrying amount of HK$13,159,000 (2010:
HK$12,824,000) (note 17), respectively; and

floating charges over certain accounts receivable
with a net carrying amount of HK$14,851,000 (2010:
HK$14,241,000) (note 22).

The carrying amounts of these bank loans approximate to their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

ARBRITER ()

REBORITERTIALATIRR (EE

EE

(i)

(i)

JiN

~

AR HIR -
ERE

RAGRENEEER . ®
201012 A 318 - $R17EFTY
AR R AT ERARIER A R (B E
2011512 31 B B@# A7)
EA TREAR AR ([ #EM
L TERR D RENEEERR
EACLIRBERAAG —BE
= AR 1T 17 3048 58 93,160,000
BLTRENEERCERKE
o RITIE B E EH L R EE
A TR R ERN S EERR
201146 A 108 ETE KR &
AZR R B A I SERARE ¢

HBREFE 4 238,905,000 78 7T
(2010%F : 234,330,000/8 7T ) EY
ETEFREEYHETEER
(MizE16) ;

¥ BR 0% 8 4 13,159,000 78 7T
(20104F : 12,824,000 7T ) K
ATHE A E TR (M
17) i &

1 BR T E A& 14,851,000 74 7T
(2010 £ : 14,241,000 7T, ) HY
& T R IE R Z BRI (Bt
22) °

SR RERITERMEEE
AFEEE -
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27. DUE TO THE FORMER ULTIMATE HOLDING

28.

COMPANY

The balances due were non-trade in nature and represented

payments by the former ultimate holding company on behalf

of the Group. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The balances were fully settled during

the year.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 January 2010

Acquisition of a subsidiary — note 32
Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year — note 12
Withholding tax paid on repatriation
of earnings from subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities
and associates
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year — note 12

Withholding tax paid on repatriation
of earnings from subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities
and associates

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2011

R2010F1 818

U BE — RS B /8 A A — BIFE 32

27. EMAAMRREZERAFTIRER

ERFBRIFEGHERRERAEH
M AT SRR IER A R KA R B A
o BRREEM - TEHEREER
B8 - BBENFRDEREE -

28. BERHARAIR
Withholding
taxes
FEH
HK$'000
THIT

8,307

167

B FARESERINRARTEH I — Rt 12

FAHEAE] -

5,990

HEHEHIE R R Z A F]

BEE H 282 M) T S A RO TR AR

BEE 51 SR

M2010412 A31 H & 201141 A1 H

(8,042)
308

6,730

B F AR RINRARTEH I — Rt 12

FAHEAE] -

5,274

HEHEHIE R R E A F]

EE H 282 M ) S A RO TR AR

EE 54 A

MR2011 £12 A31 H
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B &R ER ML
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 28. EBERAARE)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%-10% BIEFRBREMERE - [P RA
withholding tax rate is levied on dividends declared to foreign AL HINE (R ERIRIMNGE BT IR
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in BB 5%-10% BITEHIEL © %47
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January EH2008 F1A1HBERK WiE
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December FR2007F12 A1 A2 BEEMEA
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a R o fiti A B ER 35 IMK B & P8 B A
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the BRI EMEERERHE - AiIERE
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding TENFL R AT - HUL - AEBE AR
taxes on dividends distributed by the subsidiary, associates B A S RSB A R ~ B AR
and jointly-controlled entities established in Mainland China in RAERIEHFE®N2008FE1 51 H
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. REFTIS B IR 38 I S A AN TR IR
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B&&F
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Authorised: EIE
4,000,000,000 (2010: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2010 4F : 4,000,000,000 fi%)
BREE BT B 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
1,109,662,000 (2010: 825,000) ordinary 1,109,662,000 %
shares of HK$0.10 each (2010 £F : 825,000 %)
HREEOC BTz BB 110,966 83
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29.

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
year were as follows:

Notes
Bt
Issue of ordinary shares BITZBER
Upon incorporation iR VA ()
Allotment during the year FRfLEE (ii)
Arising from the Reorganisation REEH (il
Acquisition of non-controlling W BE FEPR AR M A
interests (iv)
At 31 December 2010 7R2010 12 A31 H
Capitalisation issue BT (v)
Issue of new shares BITHAR D (vi)
At 31 December 2011 R20114F12 A31 H
Notes:

(i) On 16 July 2010, one subscriber’s share of the Company
was allotted and issued at par as nil paid to Lirun Limited
(“Lirun”), a company owned by the then controlling
shareholder of the Company.

(if) On 4 August 2010, 97 and 2 subscriber’s shares were
allotted and issued at par as nil paid to Lirun and Silver Coin
International Limited (“Silver Coin”), a company owned by
the then non-controlling shareholder, respectively.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT

B (&)

T

REAARRA D BITRANZ B

Number of
shares in Issued
issue capital
ERTRAEE BRITRA
HK$'000
THT
1 -
99 -
775,952 78
48,948 5
825,000 83
824,175,000 82,417
284,662,000 28,466
1,109,662,000 110,966

BAE -

=
=

(i)

®2010 &£7 A16 8 » AR aE—k
BT AREARMNEE RETT
RATERRREEN—FEARS
BAERAR (8] -

201068 A48 « 97 &2 BAR
R R B R AR 19 95 Bl A 3% R & 1T
T 0 E K B 3R AR AR SR A ) —
2 7] Silver Coin International Limited
([ Silver Coin]) °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, on 29 November 2010,
advances of HK$232,340,000 due to the former ultimate
holding company were repaid and the Company issued
759,452 subscriber’s shares at par as fully paid to Lirun,
and 16,500 subscriber’s shares at par as fully paid to Sure
Port Investments Limited (“Sure Port”), a company owned
by the then controlling shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company acquired
additional interests in the group companies from non-
controlling shareholders by (i) repaying the advances
due to Silver Coin of HK$4,211,000 and issuing 15,948
subscriber’s shares at par as fully paid to Silver Coin on
29 November 2010; and (ii) repaying the advances of
HK$8,299,000 due to Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”),
a company owned by the then non-controlling shareholder,
and issuing 33,000 shares at par as fully paid to Ansen on
29 November 2010.

Pursuant to the resolution passed on 23 May 2011, an
aggregate of 824,175,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company were allotted and issued, credited as
fully paid at par, to the then shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company at
close of business on 23 May 2011 by way of capitalisation of
the amount of HK$82,417,500 from the amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company in
proportion to their existing shareholdings in the Company.

On 10 June 2011, the Company issued 275,000,000
new shares at HK$1.1 per share by way of the Global
Offering for a total cash consideration before expenses of
HK$302,500,000.

On 2 July 2011, the over-allotment option was partially
exercised by the stabilising manager on behalf of the
underwriters in respect of 9,662,000 over-allotment
shares to cover over-allocation conditional placing of the
international placing shares at offer price to professional,
institutional and private investors. The over-allotment
shares were issued and allotted by the Company at
HK$1.10 per share, resulting in proceeds of approximately
HK$10,628,000 before expenses.

20. W& (&)

BieE : (&)

(i

(v)

(vi)

RIBEA - 20105 11 A 298 » &
B BTRAR IR A AR 232,340,000
BILBRREARNAR MRS BT
759,452 IR A BRPIVES B HYFR 8 A IR
7 RAARR R EES & —E
RABIEREBR AR (EIE]) %
7716,500 % A BRZI S 2 FRR B A

Bt o

BIEER - BBRARF B TR
RIEEEET QR M REIMES
(i) R2010 £11 A29 HEEL
Silver Coin #J 4,211,000 /& 7L E 50 &
A Silver Coin 217 15,948 AARAAR
AREVRRE AR ¢ (i) 72010
11 A20 A (BB & K B IFIERAR R
A 8 —f A A Ansen International
Limited ([ Ansen ]) #9 8,299,000 /& 7T
B3R KA Ansen 817 33,000 I A BR
HIVERUE BIRR TS ©

BRI 201145 A 23 BB iBARZ
R ARABEBERRRRNEE
BR 2 i BR 7K EA 82,417,500 78 TT IR A%
RRARR B FIFEA 2 BRAEELL 5] T A
BAML - mR2011 65 A23 &%
HE R 71 AR A B AR R 4 i B0 AR R
R g% R 3517 A $£824,175,000 % %
HEE1E LA - WIZEEA
BR%I B EIUR BT BAR o

R2011E6A10H - X AFEB
R2REFEENEBRAAB T ET
275,000,000 ¥ » BEFHIFRFA
A 483, (B /302,600,000 7T ©

R2011F7 A28 - BEBRLHA
REBIFER O ITHE4 & 9,662,000
AR BB AC B AR (0 2 FARE BCARAE LA
HENBEERMEE  EERLA
KEEBGHBIERESHERE
B o BEEELEAR D E AR AL
FAR1.10B LB T RECE - EEH
B 2 BT FT 15 51 2B 49 10,628,000 75
=0
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the year, no share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2011.

RESERVES
(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
()  Capital reserve
Capital reserve mainly represented the difference
between the consideration and the book value of

the share of the net assets acquired in respect of
the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR LT

30.

31.

MR st @

AREE R 201145 A 23 B RN IS IHE
srEl ([l - S EREBEE
B2EE (BEAR R SKEAEMKB
RAIZIEE  TTRABSH=EABE -
EE(RRIIFRTES KB IIERTT
BF) BEHE - #WE - #HER T
PRMRE)  RIEHEARNEE KL
RIEH BB - (RN B R4 R %
BRAB2ES - &R AARHME
IR FEAR AT S~ 1TE ek
BEHE o 7A2011 412 A31 8 » BB
ST EI T AR TE 2 AR o

ot I
(@) #*%H
AEENRERAHEESHZ7
RiFEEmEFE -
() BEXGERE
ERFREIEREREE
RS (EREE

P& EFEZ M=
%‘E\o
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31.

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

(i)

(i)

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s losses), if
any, to the reserve funds until the balance of the
funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in
the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus
fund may be used to offset against accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the
transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
in the PRC which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 3.

31.

0 (2)

(a)

%@ (E)

(i)

(i)

EHEED

RE  BE R M AR RDX
B AEBER BRI
MEBARAEETEDL
BREHERBIR EHEER
BEFEEIRR)EESF
Bad(mA) EMFEE
T BEESHEHBEDE
MEARES0% - EEFH
B BUR A P ER A TR
BT ORERBATERA
FRRE 34 o B BT B8 2 A
RIEEE - ERSEAR
FEMBARESESHH

JfE o
V&

EX KB RFERERES
BXB Y BRREELER
PRASNEZRR » WARIRH
A3 PAB M R TR ©
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. & (2)
(b) Company (b) ZARF
Proposed
final
Share Retained dividend
premium profits B3 Total
BHRE KRBEF KRERE et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FH&T FA&T FAET FA&T
Upon incorporation NI AVAL = = - -
Arising from the REEH 232,262 - - 232,262
Reorganisation
Acquisition of non- YePE SRR IR M 2 12,505 - - 12,505
controlling interests
Total comprehensive  FRZEWR AL
income for the year - 18,207 - 18,207
At 31 December 2010 722010412 A 31 H
and 1 January 2011 X 2011F1A1H 244,767* 18,207* - 262,974
Capitalisation issue BT (82,417) - - (82,417)
Issue of new shares BEITHARAD 284,662 - - 284,662
Share issue expenses /TN B F (15,503) - - (15,503)
Total comprehensive  FAZ K ALLZE
income for the year - 95,446 - 95,446
Proposed final BEARE
dividend -  (55483) 55,483 -
At 31 December 2011 722011412 A 31 H 431,509* 58,170* 55,483 545,162
* These reserve accounts comprises the reserves of * ZERBROENBMRRE

A K % 5 489,679,000 JT
(20104 : 262,974,000
JL) ©

HK$489,679,000 (2010: HK$262,974,000) in the
statement of financial position.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHEEIERER LT
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32.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 27 September 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mitsui & Co., Ltd. and Mitsui &
Company (Hong Kong) Limited to acquire the remaining 40%
equity interests in Dragon Bussan, which was then a 60%
owned associate of the Group, for a total cash consideration of
US$1,457,600 (equivalent to HK$11,369,000). The acquisition
was completed on 29 November 2010, upon which Dragon
Bussan became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. One
of the principal activities of Dragon Bussan was holding a 60%
investment in Ningbo Ningxiang.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Dragon
Bussan as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Net assets acquired: FriErm & EFE ¢
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables FRIE
Cash and bank balances R RKIRITHERR

Accrued liabilities and other

payables
Tax payable FEFLIR
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIBEE

Amount due to the former ultimate
holding company

Equity value attributable to the Group
and total acquisition consideration

Satisfied by: LATRF S AT
Cash Re
Carrying value of the pre-existing RBARENREE

equity interest

RERE S ERAES
B e REmEK

32.

FEET BB R H A A 5R0R

FE AT SR AR AR A R FR

W — IR B 2 )

2010 F9H27H » AEBEEH =3
MEGRASELR=HDE(EE)AE
RAREIEE Wi - ANEASEE
E I B 60% #E 2= MY B i R Al RE
MESRT40% K - RBEERER
1,457,6005 7T (AH% R 11,369,000 /&
7T) ° WEER 2010 11 29 H 5ERK
EAMERERAASENZENE
NA]  MAMENEEXE 2 — BT
BEEEH60% KILE o

REAMMER LS B e Al BRI B E )
BENAFEWT

Fair value
recognised

on acquisition

s B R R SR Y N B
HK$’000

FAT

Note

B aE

17,182

2,691
8,529

(2,310)
(135)
28 (167)

(392)

REE R M BERERR

25,398

11,369

14,029

25,398
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32. ACAQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The Group recognised a gain of HK$2,488,000 as a result of
measuring, at fair value, its 60% pre-existing equity interest
in Dragon Bussan held before the business combination. The
gain was included in other income in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010.

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
Dragon Bussan is as follows:

EfNRENE

Cash consideration paid
Cash and bank balances acquired

Net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents included in cash
flows from investing activities

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ As disclosed in note 29(v), the Company capitalised
HK$82,417,500 from the amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company
by allotting and issuing an aggregate of 824,175,000
ordinary shares to the then shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at close of business on 23 May 2011.

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2011,
HK$7,301,000 in relation to purchase of property, plant
and equipment was transferred from deposits paid to
property, plant and equipment.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

PRI & M ERTTAS R

REZPBHESREMIIE S
FASEEBYRREFER

32. KE—FHMEATE(E)

AEBRZE AT EFTERESE HA]
A REDYE60% A IRHEm iER
%% 2,488,000 BT ° &M amst AE
2010 12 A31 BILFELE M
FKEEAMMAR ©

BRAWEEADENR S RED TN
B

HK$'000
THAT

11,369
(8,529)

2,840

33. GEReRERME

FEHRERS

@ AT EE29(v) T EE - AR
FEBMMR20114F5 523 B &%
Ry ] A5 SR F B 51 AR R RIAR R
ez ERRREERETEH
824,175,000 fx E AR B A A
AR RERERSEER
82,417,500 7T °

b) REZE2011F12831H ILF
EBEHEBEME  BEREXK
57,301,000/ L HE [N iREE
BEYE - BE KRS -
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34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided
a guarantee, amounting to approximately HK$173,220,000, to
banks in connection with loans granted to subsidiaries (2010:
Nil). As at 31 December 2011, the loan balance of subsidiaries
subject to guarantees given to banks by the Company
amounted to approximately HK$156,409,000 (2010: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) Aslessor
The Group leases certain portion of its office building
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease
negotiated for a term of one year.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total

future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year

34.

35.

BRAR

RARERR  ARELETMEKX
HARME -

RAREIR - ARFREBETFHEA
AIZBRMABITRE—HESEED
173,220,000 JT 2 #& 1R (20104 :
) - 2011912 A31 8 » IREARQ
RAIAIERITE HAER - WEBARER
#REAZE 49 156,409,000 7 7T (2010 4F :
) o

EEHEREE

(@) {EBHBEA
AEBREBELELEHEZHRE
EEFE#EmAa TS &AL
WE A1 FH -
KA R - A& B 5] #

HREEHENRRKEES 2
BZE N5 S HARI AR A U -

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TiEn TR
- 419
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessees
The Group leases certain portion of its building and pipe
racks under operating lease arrangements. The leases
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year 16K

In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ 2ZE5F (BIEEHEMF)

After five years 5% F

The Company had not entered into any operating lease
arrangements as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

36. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in

note 35 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

35.

36.

EEHARNE(E)
(b) EREBA
$‘§ BRBEEEHELHES

ETEFRER - ZEH ,ﬁ@
i,ﬁﬁbﬁ%m\%n Z=15F o

‘W

RFEHK $El?fiT\T}ﬁ‘ﬂl
HEEHENRRKEHEES
%’E,AEATEIWH\HI‘%H?H}\}U‘J‘ :

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRET TET
11,596 10,634
38,452 36,442
50,068 54,079
100,116 101,155

M2011F12 A31 8 » NAAW
EET AR EHEELHE (2010
F:F)o

A ifE
B EXPRESs Al i@ M E L2

Sh o RBEHR  AEEE TIEXR
AHE
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P %
36. COMMITMENTS (continued) 36. &iE(Z)
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
Contracted, but not provided for BaT4) - BREE 3,373 3,196
Authorised, but not contracted for B - BRETHN 482,726 =
The Company did not have any commitments as at 31 R2011 612 A31 H * AR RN EE

37.

December 2011 (2010: Nil).

Al EHE (20104 : &)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. ABKALTES
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BREFIEHRREAMM S AT
these financial statements, the Group had the following RSN REBRFANY HE

transactions with related parties during the year:

BALTETATRS :
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (continued)

Terminal storage income:
Dragon Crown Chemical
(Shanghai Pudong New
Area) Company Ltd.
DC Investments

Terminal service expenses:
Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Public Services
Company Ltd.
Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Management
Committee

Afforestation fee:
Shanghai Jin Wang

Afforestation Company Ltd.

Rental expenses:
Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited
(“Nanjing CIPC”)
DC Investments

Interest expenses:
DC Investments

T e ONE
AT (LHR
#ie) BRAR

BEAME TEARR

WS SEARTS > i ¢
AR LB XEER
NAEEERE
FAT
AR LB EER
ERLEEE

ARICE
LB ER EMARE
BRAF]

MEXH -
MAREBTEE
BERAA
(IEmCIPCl)
BEAME TEARR

MBS
BEAME TEARR
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37.

(i)

(i)

(i)

(v)

MBALES (&)

(@ (&)

2011
HK$’000
TERT

3,468

1,871

546

9,382

1,494

2010
HK$'000
THET

1,623

1,790

520

36

8,938

622

157
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Terminal storage income was charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and these related companies in which a director of
the Company is the ultimate controlling shareholder of
these related companies.

Terminal service expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and its related companies which were the
group companies of a non-controlling shareholder of
NJDC.

Afforestation fee was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and its
related party which was a close family member of a
director of the Company.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and a non-
controlling shareholder of NJDC for the use of pipe
racks.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise.

Commitments with related parties

M

On 19 April 2011, a subsidiary of the Group,
as the lessor, entered into a two year terminal
storage agreement ending on 31 December
2012 with DC Investments. The total operating
lease commitment fully due within one year
as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$3,554,000.

(a)

(b)

37. RAWALER(Z)

(&)

G

M

(i)

(i)

BBEFEFRATDRIEAEE
B H [ R X B AR B 175 TE HO 16
HTEE - ARREERZEF
AR R B SAR IR IR AR -

IBBER  H D RIEA K E
B H B R X B AR B 175 TE HO 16
AT - ZEAB R B R R
REAFFERBERNEBET

NG

AL B TIRIE A SR H 2 HL B
Bt A 48 B 1 5E B R R X
i BABALTRARBES
HOATHR ©

MESTH TR EA K B B R
B P HY SR B IR B
ERMEE BERGRRSA -

V)  MEESZHTREAEEEZ
el NI ER RN E i
B iBERGRRSA

[G) B B 75 A iz A iR

U)

R2011F4 8198 K
Bz BB ARER
i AE A BRI TEIRRET
YA ZE2012F12 A 31 H
LFAHRF 2 TS8R 1T 1
o B E 2011412 A 31
HIEFE  —FRELE
& 2 & & 498,554,000
BT e
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) (continued)

(i)  On 12 November 2010, a subsidiary of the
Group, as the lessee, entered into a twenty nine
month lease agreement ending on 31 December
2012 with DC Investments. The total operating
lease commitment fully due within one year
as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$1,494,000.

(i) In March 2007, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a fifteen year lease agreement ending on
14 March 2022 with Nanjing CIPC. The total
operating lease commitments fully due within
one year, in the second to fifth year, and beyond
the fifth year as at 31 December 2011 were
approximately HK$9,613,000, HK$38,452,000
and HK$50,068,000, respectively.

(c) Details of the outstanding balances with related
parties are included in notes 25 and 27 to the financial
statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits pSE-E ===l
Post-employment benefits RIKEAER
Total compensation paid BENEEER

to key management personnel A B B4Rz

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

37. RABALER(E)
b) (&)

(i) H2010%F 11 B128 * &
EE 2 —HKHBARES
A AEEAE TEERET
S E 2012912 A31H
It AH29E A 2 & #
% o Bl 22011412 A 31
BIEFE  —FRELEE
T & #HE & 491,494,000
BT

(i) PR2007E3H @ A&EE
—HRNERARERE R
CIPCE] i # F2022%F
3H148 It & Bi1545F 2
HE W= B 220115
122A1BILEFE —F
N F_FEFERAFR
hEN Bz BKERE
Y& 9 Rl 4 79,613,000
7T ~ 38,452,000 7T M
50,068,000/ 7T °

() BHHEBALHORBEERF
BRI IR 25 J 27

(d TEENETEEEASTH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
8,558 1,941

46 12

8,604 1,953
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. BREESHEMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIMERR  AEENESREERE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: B & D AE K R FEWRIE - 0BT

Financial assets — loans and receivables

Accounts receivable

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (note 23)

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (note 23)
Cash and cash equivalents

I~

TREE - BERR YRR

Group
REE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
JEMBR X 39,857 45,152
FTATER K ~ e REAmEY
HIER B EE (FI7E23) 860 3,203
ReRREEEY 403,243 46,611
443,960 94,966
Company
¥ /N
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T THET
SFATERN IR - e REAAmER
FIER € R EE (Mi7E23) 111,597 31,700
REeERBREEEY 293,980 =
405,577 31,700
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

Other payables and accruals HAbfETRIE R EET &
Interest-bearing bank loans TRIRITER

Due to the former ultimate holding company & AT AR I A B IE

Other payables and accruals E At 5RIA R BT & A

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables and other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

38. BREANBSHEMIR(E)

39.

TR A E —IREHAAS IR

Group

REME
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT

35,572 35,511
156,409 218,660
- 249

191,981 254,420

Company
b /N
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT

6,044 3,392

MERREEERRBE

AEENTESRTABRERRE LA
SEEYURGTERITER - %52
BTATEZANSAEEZELEER
BEd  ARERERMZHSREE
REE  PIMEREERKEEELDN
FEWRRTK 5T AR S LAl FE UK IR
B & BB DA e EL A 5 SR IR I AT
.

AEESRTAMMSRNEZRRS
MERR - FEERBRERSE S
%o BEEERHALBEERMLFTRR
R - ZSBROMENT -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings
bear interest at rates with reference to PBOC and HIBOR. The
Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the movements
in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities and
borrowings regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate
swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in PBOC rates and HIBOR, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2011
RMB AR
Hong Kong dollar PETT

31 December 2010
RVB AR
Hong Kong dollar BT

2011 £12 A31 H

2010 12 A31 H

39.

MERREEARRBE(Z)

Tz
AEEEHNTSNEEPEL T E
EAKE B RGERFERKA
ERMA - REDRITEENETIZR
PR ARRITEERE R BBIRTR
ERERFE  AREFEBINERFR
HEMEIE N BT IRTTR B B
EERERRE o AKBEYWREBEMA
2R ER S F R B

TRETEEMRAETEERT - &
BARRITEENEREBRITRZE
WEEAEBEFHHE ANEE RN AE
MOEBEFBRITEENTE)

Change in

Change in profit
basis points before tax
HE2F BRBLAT
an Il B B

HK$’000

BT

50 529

50 253

50 628

50 466
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
advanced payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit risk
through the granting of guarantee, further details of which are
disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEEEERAR AT

39.

MERREEERRBE (&)

EEV
AEBETEZAERAREERFNSE
=R RERS - ARBBRAENE
P—RRAXNTAMNK 1o - UK
RS XBIFERR - AEE MR
FREBRIENEKX - HRAKEEER
ERA REBRIENE=TEMR
% At — R BARAEAR -

rEENEREE(BRAS AR
FEY - BRI - U RFT AR
RekEMEREFENEREE)H
EERBRIELTENMEK - H&EK
RERBESENZETIANKEE - AR
A ERREERY RIELER - AR
BRERTEHRRMES4

BRAAEBEUERR R AT ATER K
ZekHEMERFENSREEES
NEERRAE -T2 EIED B
BRI 22 K& 23 ©

REE AR
AEEEEECRAEREREE
(fIanfe s iR A K FRAH IS & 53R
EREBNIHAXREREESERDN
R

AEENBEEREBERANRES R
E5 - ERESFEMREE M Z FIR
B¥e - AReHEEESHR -

AREBERHRERRER G HOARMR
RSB BENZHERDT
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. MERBEEAERBE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

2011
3to
Less than 12 months 1to5
Ondemand 3 months 3fEBZE years Total
RER LRIEA 1218 A 1&E5%F st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FERx FET FERT FERx FEx

Interest-bearing bank st SR TEX

loans - 268 149,548 12,675 162,491
Other payables and ~ EAbfENFIB K
accruals e E A 1,234 34,338 - = 35,572

1,234 34,606 149,548 12,675 198,063

2010
3to
Less than 12 months 1t0o5
Ondemand 3 months 3EAZE years Total
®RER LRIEA 12 & A 1254 4t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKEO000  HK$'000
TAT THAT TAET TAT TAT

Interest-bearing bank & EBIRTTER

loans 28,236 329 29,533 171,239 229,337
Other payables and  EfthfERI ZIE &

accruals FEEtE A - 35,511 - - 35,511
Due to the former FES AT B AR PR AR

ultimate holding RNAIFKIA

company 249 - - - 249

28,485 35,840 29,533 171,239 265,097
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

AN FOR L ER

FAMBR R RAN TGRS
HRERNER
MR ER

Other payables and accruals

Guarantee given to banks in connection
with loans granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of the reporting period

AN FOR L ER

FAK B R R RAN RS
HRERNER
MR ER

Other payables and accruals

Guarantee given to banks in connection
with loans granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of the reporting period

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

m Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited ZEHIEEIERAR DT

39. MBERRERARRBE (Z)

ARRIMBRERBRERRNEHOR
H:

BRI SR EI BB RN T ¢
2011
Less than
Ondemand 3 months Total
REREE 2PHSER ast

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER

1,089 4,955 6,044
156,409 - 156,409
157,498 4,955 162,453

2010
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
BEXEE PR3EA f@at

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TRL TRL

= 3,392 3,392

= 3,392 3,392

BEAEHE
FEBEREBRNEEERRRER
SEBRNFELEEE  LHERSR
REEARLE KM EETER
RERREMRTRREE -

AEETEEEARFB I RBE AR
LR B K AR B ) R B e R L
ATHE - BERFSGIREARARE K
SEAHABARRMNORE - [K
RIREBARNKEBITHI



Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. MERBEEAERBE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued) BEAREE (B)
The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the debt- AREBIZAFREKHBE R Rec e
to-adjusted capital ratio, which is calculated as the net debt BN - Figl bR TR & (& F 5
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company plus ARARIEE AEGEZINEE S
net debt. Net debt includes other payables and accruals and ZHETE - BEFHESIEEMENK
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents. HREGERNARG BRITER - &
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at the end of the reporting RENEESEEY - REEHR 8
period was as follows: R TR AR RN -
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FATT
Other payables and accruals HAb T RIB R BT B R 35,572 35,511
Interest-bearing bank loans STESRITER 156,409 218,660
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A HeRREEEY (403,243) (46,611)
Net debt/(cash) BEFE/(Re) (211,262) 207,560
Equity attributable to AKARHEB A
owners of the Company FE(h#E R 849,824 437,922
Capital and net debt BERKEEFE 638,562 645,482
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B EHL AR E AR X N/A 32.2%
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. #HHEMBEE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEE2EN2012F3 A6 BEBNE
issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2012. FETBE B T R o
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBHBE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

FEx FTH T FTET FET FTHEx
REVENUE A 240,675 233,024 198,547 150,095 58,474
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRF Al s A 108,557 125,193 107,979 75664 32,528
Tax I8 (5,319) (8,036) (6,043) (3,643) =
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 103,238 117,157 101,936 72,021 32,528
Attributable to: AT A&
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZE DN 90,076 96,745 85,304 60,447 28,080
Non-controlling interests IR fE 13,162 20,412 16,632 11,574 4,448

103,238 117,157 101,936 72,021 32,528

At 31 December
A12H31H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

FEx THxT FTET TFET THEx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 641,018 640,918 626,071 640,380 545,475
Current assets mENEE 451,493 104,187 62,673 65,273 39,030
Total assets EERE 1,092,511 745,105 688,744 705,653 584,505
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mENEE 180,100 92,861 117,182 158,351 171,211
Non-current liabilities EmEAE 17,598 168,918 284,075 356,611 318,085
Total liabilities BERE 197,698 261,779 401,257 514,962 489,296
Net assets BEFE 894,813 483,326 287,487 190,691 95,209
Total equity T AAE 894,813 483,326 287,487 190,691 95,209

The summary does not form a part of the audited financial ZHEW N RERYBREN—F D -
statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
China Everbright Capital Limited

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
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REEAE
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SRR L
RRERE
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RE L RE
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INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Strategic Financial Relations Limited

Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |,

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com
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Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
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